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RANDY ROACH
MAYOR

March 24, 20 i 0

CITY OF LAKE CHARLES
326 Pujo .Streel P.O Box 370b
Lake Charles, LA 70602-3706

337-491-1251 • fAX 337-491-1225

DEPARTMENT OF FINAJ CE
KAREN 0 HARRELL, DfRECTOR

Honorable Randy Roach, Mayor
Membei's afthe City Council

Dear Mayor and City Council Members:

In accordance with requirements of the City's Charter and applicable state law, I am pleased to submit the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Lake Charles for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.
This repOJ1 has been prepared by the City's Finance Department in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP), and the basic financial statements contained herein have been independently audited in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. However, the completeness and reliability of all information
presented in this report remains the responsibility of the City's management. McElroy, Quirk, and Burch (APC), a
filll1 of licensed ceL1ified public accountants, have audited the City of lake Charles's financial statements. The
purpose of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The independent auditor conc luded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for
rendering an unqualified ("clean") opinion on these financial statements. The independent auditor's repOl1 is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this repOJ1.

Govelllmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires certain government-wide statements as well as the
fund financial statements. The purposes and contents of these financial statements are further explained in
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) which follows the independent auditor'S report and should be
read in conjunction with this letter of transmittal for a more complete understanding of the City's financial condition
and activity.

City Proll Ie

The City of Lake Charles was incorporated in 1867 and is the principal city and trade center of SouthWestern
Louisiana, which is comprised of a five parish area with an estimated population of285,853 in 2008. The Research
Division, College of Administration and Business, Louisiana Tech University estimates a population of 74,668
within the corporate limits of the City which includes 43 square miles. Lake Charles, which is in Calcasieu Parish,
is located on Interstate 10, approximately two hours east of Houston, Texas and west of Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

The City operates under a mayor-council form of government pursuant to a 1961 home rule charter, and provides a
full range of traditional municipal services such as public safety. construction and maintenance of municipal
infrastructure including water and wastewater, parks and recreation. planning and zoning, trash collection and solid
waste disposal and public transpoi1ation. The City also has specialized facilities such as a municipal golf course, a
civic center coliseul1l and theater complex, and two 311 centers. All of these activities are integral parts of the city
govelllment and are included in this report. Certain components of the judicial function are legalJyseparate entities
which are discretely presented in these statements as "component units."

The City adopts an annual operating budget and a project-based capital budget in accordance with procedures
establ ished by its chat1er and by state statute. A Ithough the budget document is comprehensive, covering all funds
under the City's control, legal control of expenditures is exercised primarily at the depal1ment level for the General
Fund and for each Special Revenue Fund pursuant to charter and statutory requirements. BudgeHo-actual
coniparisons for majoi' fulids of these types are included in this repol1.

I
Cherishing the Past, Embracing the Future



The City also maintains an internal control framework designed to provide reasonable, but !lOt absolute, assurance
regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, as well as the reliability of
financial records for preparing financial statements. An evaluation of internal controls and legal compliance is
required by federal law in cOfU1ection with the independent audit, and the auditor's reports th.ereon are included in a
separately issued "single audit" report.

Economic Environment

Lake Charles is a deep water port with a 30-mile ship channel to the Gulf of Mexico, and has developed an
economic base dominated by petrochemical manufacturing and refining since the 1940's. Southwest Louisiana has
diversified its economy as is evident when you consider the foJlowing major economic drivers. The Port of Lake
Charles is the I2th largest port in the United States. ChefU1ault Industrial Airpark and the Lake Charles Regional
Airport support a growing aviation industry. Lake Charles is hOme to McNeese State University and Sowela
Technical Community College. Riverboat Gaming was introduced in 1993 and has provided funding for major
capital improvements since that time. Retail businesses within the City provide goods and services to a five parish
regional area. Annual art events and over 75 afU1ual festivals provide entertainment to both locals and visitors. The
City's website states, "Lake Charles possesses many of the appealing characteristics and qualities of a great urban
center, yet maintains that 'personable feel' of a smaller town" and "is an inviting place to call home."

The City's current administration has a strong focus on quality of life issues. In a recent "State of the City"
presentation, the City's commitment to enhancing the community for our citizens was very apparent. The City's
investment in our parks and recreation facilities and programs as well as the arts and cultural events are as vital to
the quality of life as are the roads, bridges and other infrastructure.

Although the City is feeling the effects of the national economy there have been many positive business
developments in our area. Betow are recent and CWTent development projects:

•

•

•

•

•

•

Global Modular Solutions, LLC has completed a portion of its $120 million manufacturing plant for
modules and components for nuclear power plants in Lake Charles on property at the Port of Lake CharleS.
Estimated are 450 construction jobs as well as 1,400 new jobs when the facility is operating at fuJI capacity.

Construction has begun on Pinnacle Entertainment's new $305 million Sugarcane Bay Casino, with
completion planned for June 20 I!. This facility wiJl be adjacent to their highly successful L'Auberge du
Lac Casino Resort and will generate about 700 construction jobs and 1,000 new permanent jobs.

Lake Charles Cogeneration, LLC wi [] soon begin construction of a $1.3 billion gasification plant along the
Calcasieu Ship Channel at the Port of Lake Charles. It is anticipated thatthere will be more than 1,900 local
jobs indirectly created to support the plant and 3,000 estimated constmction jobs.

Northrop Gmmman mmounced in October 2009 that it has been awarded a $3.9 bilJion Air Force contract
to refurbish 59 KC-) OA refueling tankers. The portion of the work that wiIJ be done at ChennauJt
International Airport means an additional 300 jobs at their current facility and stabilizes a longer-term
presence for this company.

Aeroframe Services announced in February 2010 a major expansion to its facilities that are located at
Chennault International Airport. Aeroframe, which specializes in maintenance, repair and overhaul of
aircrafts, will add at least 300 new, direct jobs this year with an average salary of $55,000, plus benefits.

The completion of a $28 million passenger tenninal at the Lake Charles Regional Airport and the return of
American Eagle Airlines with service to Dallas doubled passenger airline services as it joins with
Continental Express which flies to Houston.

Kohl's Department Store recently opened in the Prien Lake Mall. This $3.2 million investment was needed
to fill space that had been vacant since the Macy's Department Store had closed in March 2008.
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• The construction of many new hotels and apartment complexes in our ar0a recently resulted in Business
Week magazine's designation of Lake Charles as the No. I building market in the country (September 17,
2009 issue) Business Week also named Lake Charles as the "Best place to raise your kids in Louisiana"
(November 17,2009 issue).

• The June 1, 2009 groundbreaking for the lake front promenade was ci ted by the Lake Charles American
Press as "the mm,! significant lake front const.ruction project since the Ci vic Cenler was bui It in 1970." This
$4 million project is scheduled for completion in sUlllmer 2010 and is the anchor for $32 million of
downtown development projects which are supported by the City of Lake Charles. A construction of a $1.8
million marina is complete on the lakefront.

Allhough we have much good news to share in Lake Charles and we have fared better than most areas during this
national recession, our recent economic news indicates that our area is feeling the effects that have plagued the
national econoITIy.

• Sales tax revenues, which account fOj' the majority of the City's revenue and serves as a strong economic
indicator, have decreased 12.57 percent in the tJast 4 months compared to the same period in the prior year.
Only two months collections in the display below showed positive growth. Tolal decline for the displayed
12 month period is 6.3 percent or $2.9 million dollars.

City of Lake Charles
Monthly Sales Tax Collections
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• Gaming revenues have declined over the previous year's collections by ] .2% for lhe three local riverboals
and racetrack ror the period July 200Y through February 20 I0 compared to the same prior year period per
records provided by Louisian.a State Police.

• Grand tota] real estate trends were down J 8.6 percent or $55 million in 2009 compared lo 2008, as per
SWLA Association of Realtors.

.. Unemp]oYl11ent in Calcasieu Parish was at 6.9 percent in December 2009 compared to 4.9 percent in the
previous December. Although this is an increase for our area, it i.s significantly lower than the 9.7 percent
national unemployment rate.

Current and Future Financial Plans

The current trend of double digit reductions in sales lax has the City laking a serious look at all expenditures. We
have asked our departments for a voluntary reduction of 6 percent of their adopted budgets. We are evulua[ing each



vaQant position prior to allowing the departments to fiJI them. Although the City has strong cash reserves, the
adopted 2010 General Fund operating budget projects a $2.3 million draw down of reserves. If the trend in sales tax
continues, that deficit could increase by a projected $4 million.

The City issued $35 million in bonds in May 2007 for Phase 1 of the $90 million capital improvement plan that was
approved by 1ake Charles voters. To date the City has spent $32 million of the bond ptoceeds and has an additional
$7.7 million in outstanding construction commitments related to the bond issue. Local road projects, water and
sewer extensions, recreation improvements and downtown development make up the majority of the spending.

As the City moves forward witb Phase 2 of the bond projects, we are in the process of issuing $40 million in revenue
bonds that will be issued on a parity with the Series 2007 Bonds. The majority of this money will be used for tbe
Enterprise Boulevard extension and Lake Street road projects and downtown development. Downtown development
is a hot topic in the Lake Charles area, and $18 million of the bond issue was allocated for that initiative. The City
has been awarded funding from other sources and plans to spend upwards of $32 million in the next two years on the
lakefront and downtown area.

In October 2009, the City refunded $21 million in variable rate bonds that were originally issued in 2003 and was
used to construct Plant b Wastewater Treatment Plant. The new issue was $17,735,000 with at 12 year fixed-rate
term.

Accumulated fund balances and revenues not needed to repay the bonded debt will be used to provide for previously
authorized and future city projects that were not included in the bond proposition. Below are highlights of current
city bond and other capital improvement projects:

Bond Projects:

•
•

•

•

•

•
•
•
•

McNeese Street road extension - $7 million project under construction, completion date November 201 0
Lake Street improvements - $9 million estimate, bid date May 20 I0 with completion date expected in early
2012
Enterprise Boulevard extension - $17 million estimate, bids will be accepted in June 2010 with completion
expected in2012
Lake Street/West Prien Lake Road intersection improvements - $1.8 million project under construction,
completion date September 20 I0
Water and sewer projects - $2.4 million completed projects; $9 million under construction to be completed
in within the next couple of months
Power Center Parkway extension - $5.3 milJion completed 20 I0
Recreation 7 Parks Improvement Project - $2.1 million completed 2009
Civic Center improvements - $1.6 million center section completed 2009
Marina project - $1.9 million completed 20 I0

Capital Projects:

• Lakefront Promenade - $4 miIIion under construction, completion date August 2010
• Sale Road reconstruction - $3.8 million in design phase, estimated start date January 20 II

Various smaller road, asphalt overlay, sidewalk and drainage projects under design, recently bid or under
construction - $4.6 million

• Recreation projects, primarily Tuten and Riverside Park development $2.4 million, bid date expected
summer 2010

• Transit Facility - $4.2 million design phase complete, estimated bid date April 20 10
• Creole Street fire station rebuild - $1.4 million under construction, completion date 2010
• Asphalt overlay of four major streets - $5 million stimulus funding in design
• Hollyhill Road improvements - $2.8 million completed 2009
• Mallard Cove clubhouse rebuild - $1.8 minion completed 2010
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Additional downtown/Lakefront development projects wiU be funded by bond funds, intergovernmental grants and
capital project funds. The list ofprojects that are currently under design includes:

• Bord du Lak Park and Amphitheater redesign and reconstruction - $11 million estimate
• Ryan Street Streetscape - $7.5 million estimate
• Gill Street extension - $3.4 miIJion estimate
• Gateway - Pithon Coulee surge protection and Ryan Street bridge rebuild - $1 million estimate
• Highway 385 multi use trail - $745,000 estimate

Long-term financial planning:

The unreserved, wldesignated fund balance in the General Fund is $23.4 million which is 38 percent of the 2010
budgeted expenditures and non-capital transfers. Historically the City's policy has been to maintain a 35 percent
minimum fund balance target for the General Fund. However, the administration has evaluated this policy, given
the recent hWTicanes which demonstrated the need for cash reserves during emergency times, and determined that a
30 percent fund balance target will provide sufficient reserves.

Awards and Acknowledgements:

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financi.al reporting to the City of Lake Charles for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30,2008. The City also received this award for its reports oftbe
preceding twenty-four years. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. Such reports must satisfy both
GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for Qne year only. We believe our current report continues to meet Certificate
of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate. .

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated efforts of the
entire Finance Department staff. We also wish to acknowledge the continued interest and support of the City'S
elected officials in maintaining an effective financial management and reporting program.

;r~~~SUD~ed1kt!j/(@
Karen D. Harrell
Director of Finance
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Honorable Mayor Randy Roach
and City Council

City of Lake Charles
Lake Charles Louisiana

( I I (. "I",.•lli .. ,I! 1 .:'1111'""I '''-*'11 .. : I,. 'j ...

• \ \ I 'lflll'"'/\ ,'I l:r"\1 III.!':

I f I' I. !Ulk" 1"1'1111\,,11'1,'.11.,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lake Charles, Louisiana, as of and for the year
ended September 30,2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Lake Charles,
Louisiana's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accouhting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit prOVides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Lake Charles, Louisiana, as of September 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the respective budgetary comparison
information for the General Fund and the Major Special Revenue Funds.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
22, 2009, on our consideration of the City of Lake Charles, Louisiana's, internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain proviSions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting Or on compliance That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government AUditing Standards and should be considered in
conjunction with this report in Gonsidering the results of our audit.

Management's discussion and analysis on pages 15 through 26, is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming opinions on the financial statements that
comprise the City of Lake Charles, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, schedules of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances - budget and actual, schedules of capital assets used in operation of
governmental funds and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - budget and actual,
and schedules of capital assets used in operation of governmental funds have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory
section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

h15~/~-r~
Lake Charles, Louisiana
March 22, 2009
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This discussion and analysis seeks to provide an ov~rview of the fmancial activity and perfonnance of the City of
Lake Charles for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, and accompanies the basic financial statements
beginning on page 24 of this report. The ti"ansmittal Jetter on pages 1- 4 of this report provides fwther information
from a broader perspective, and should be consulted in conjunction with this discussion and the financial statements
themselves for a more complete understanding of the City's financial condition and economic environment.

Financial Highlights

~ The City's net assets increased by $9.8 million or 2.8 percent during the year to a total of $367.3 million.
Unrestricted financial assets comprise 17.6 percent of this total. Most of the increase is related to the City's
ongoing investment in capital assets.

~ Capital assets increased by $18 million, net of depreciation, representing an increase of 5.9 percent from
2008. Land acquisition for parks and the new transit facility totaled $1.3 million during the year. Increases
in completed projects include $6.3 million for paving projects and $3.7 milJion. for sewer improvements
that were funded primarily from the city capital improvement funds. $2.9 miJIion for completed water line
improvement projects were funded both with bond and city capital improvement funds.

}- The City currently has $83.4 million in construction in progress, which accounts for the remainder of the
increase in capital assets. The City currently has spent $7 mill ion on 9 various water and sewer bond
projects that are under contract. Power Center Parkway, a $5 million bond road project, was recently
accepted as substantially complete. The McNeese Street Extension, which is included in the local road
category of the bond issue at $7 million, is currently under contract. $4.5 million has been spent on
Downtown Development projects and are being funded by bond funds and Community Development Block
Grant Recovery Funds. Development of a new $42 million wastewater treatment plant continues and the
final phase of work is nearing completion. Major renovations of $10 million to George West Water Plant
are nearing completion with the final phase being the construction of a $1.3 mi Ilion ground storage tank at
the facility. The construction of a new club house at the golf course is nearly completed at a total cost of
$1.8 million, most of which was paid for with disaster recovery funds.

)- Total revenue from both governmental and business-type activities was $106.5 mill ion, a decrease of 3.6
percent from the previous year total of $110.5 million. Total grants and ContTibutions revenues remain
constant although the distribution between operations and capital changed due to the nature of the receipts
received, primarily for disaster recovery. Sales tax revenues decreased slightly by nearly 1 percent in 2009
from the prior year; those collections of $45 million account for over 42 percent of total revenues.
Riverboat revenues increased to $9. I million in 2009. Due to continued low return on investments,
earnings decreased by $2 million from 2008 earnings. The largest revenue reduction is in miscellaneous
general revenues where $2.3 million was recorded in fiscal year 2008 for developer donated infrastructure,
and no such donation was received in fiscal year 2009.

~ The 2009 governmental fund expenditures of $97.5 million are an increase of 8.2 percent from the $90
million spent in 2008. Capital expenditures increased from $19 million in 2008 to $28 million in 2009 as
the City moves forward with bond issue projects, primarily on roads, parks, water and sewer projects and
downtown development.

~ Total governmental fund balances were reduced by $11.9 million in 2009. The General Fund transferred
$5 million to other funds for capital improvements and $2 million to the Risk Management Internal Service
Fund but stilI retains a fund balance of $28 million. The Capital Project fund balance was reduce.cJ by $8.5
million as the City draws down on the proceeds from the bonds that were issued in 2007.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Financial Statements

This report encompasses a series of financial statements consisting of the following components:

1. Government-wide financial statements, which are designed to provide an organization-wide overview
similar in nature to the form of repOlting used for private-sector businesses. The two components of this
presentation are:

~ The Statement of Net Assets, which is roughly equivalent to a private business balance sheet,
summarizing all of the City's assets and liabilities and reporting the difference between the two as "net
assets." Changes in net assets over time may provide an indication of either an improving or declining
financial position.

~ The Statement of Activities is an organization-wide operating statement, which accounts for changes in
net assets during the City's 2009 fiscal year. This statement takes into account all revenues and
expenses accrued for that year, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide statements presented on pages 24 - 25 of this report are a result of the financial
reporting model established !by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34. These
statements also distinguish governmental activities, which are those city functions principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, from business-type activities Which are intended to recover a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. The City's governmental activities include
such fllnctions as public safety (fire and police) and public works (principally streets, sanitation and
sewerage), while its business-type activities consist of a civic center, golf course, transit system, and water
utility.

The government-wide statements also include two component units, City Court and the Ward Three
Marshal, which are legally separate entities With financial dependency on the City as "primary government."
They do not include other legally separate local entities which are financially and operationaJly independent
ofthe City. This discussion and analysis pertains only to the City as primary government.

2. Fund financial statements report financial data for individual funds into which the City's accoW1ts are
organized to maintain compliance with finance-related legal and contractual requirements. This report
includes two categories of funds, governmental and proprietary. (The City has no fiduciary funds.)

The governmental fund finailcial statements generally cover the same functions as the governmental
activities in the government-wide statements but differ in their focus on near-term spendable resources
rather than longer-teml measurement of all net assets. A comparison of the fund and govemment-wide
statements with respect to governmental functions is useful in gaining a Jonger-teml perspective than that
provided solely by the near-teml focus of governmental fund statements, and reconciliation is provided in
the governmental fund statements to support such comparison.

The City maintains twelve individual governmental funds, seven of which are classified as major and are
separately displayed in the governmental fund statements beginning on page 26 of this report. The
remaining five funds are aggregated into a single display on those statements but are individuaUy presented
in the combining statements referred to below.

The proprietary fund financial statements cover business-type activities in which external customers are
charged for services, as welJ as internal service activities funded by charges to other city funds and operating
units. The enterprise fund category in these statements corresponds to the business-type activities reported
in the government-wide statements. The internal service category consists of two funds which account for
risk financing and employee group medical benefits. AJ I proprietary fund statements are reported on the
accrual basis of accounting as used in the government-wide statements and in private-sector business.
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3. Notes to the financial statements provide additional information and explanation necessary for full
understanding of the government-wide and fund financial statements and are presented on pages 42 - 64 of
this report.

4. Other information, consisting of the combining statements for the five non-major governmental funds and
two internal service funds, is presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.

5. The statistical section contains primarily trend data and non-financial information about the City's various
activities.

City-wide Financial Analysis

As shown on the government-wide financial statements, the City's net assets at the end of2009 were $367,252,721,
with 74. I percent of this total consisting of capital assets, i.e., physical plant, equipment, and infrastructure, less
related outstanding debt. An additional 8.3 percent of net assets are externally restricted by law or contract, leaving
17.6 percent as unrestricted net assets which are generally available for use at the City's discretion. Year-end assets,
liabilities, and net assets are summarized below. It should be noted that the investment in capital assets is not
available as a financial resow'ce for payment of related debt, other liabilities, or future costs, whic.h will require the
use of either existing financial resources or future revenues. Also note that capital assets are reported net of
accumulated depreciation, and that the infrastructure portion of these reported assets includes only those projects
completed since 1975.

NET ASSETS
(in thousands)

Current and other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

$124,156 $136,404 $ 5,106 $ 3,287 $129,262 $139,691

254,661 237,934 67,502 66,241 322,163 304,175

378,817 374,338 72,608 69,528 45J,425 443,866

Long-term liabilities 61,637 68,903 622 541 62,259 69,444

Current and other liabilities 19,792 14,834 2,121 2,191 21,913 17,025

Total liabilities 81,429 83,737 2,743 2,732 84,172 86,469

Net assets:

lnvested in capital assets,

net of debt 204,550 200,193 67,502 66,241 272,052 266,434

Restricted 30,622 42,220 30,622 42,220

Unrestricted 62,216 48,188 2,363 555 64,579 48,743

Total rtet assets $297,388 $290,601 $69,865 $66,796 $367,253 $357,397
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Net assets increased by $1/,855.041 or 2.8 percent for the City as a whole during the 200Y fiscal year. The change in
net assets for governmental activities W<lS a 2.3 percent incre11se, while business-type activities experienced a 4.6
percent inerease. Most of the change is related to increases in capital assets. The City implemented GASB
Statement No. 45 which requires recognition of Other Poslemployment Benefits which reduced the City's net assets
by $424,1 16. The amount recorded as a long-term liability on the statement of net assets for governmental funds is
$372.J 35. which includes $5,353 for lhe il1lernal service fund and $51,981 I'or the business type activities.

The followingeharl sUlllmarizes expenses and related program revenues for tbc various governmental and business­
type. futlcrions uisplayed in the financial statements. The signi ficance of this comparison is that the portion of each
function's expenses not offset by program revenues is left to be covered hy general revenues, namely taxes and other
unrestricted sources.

Expenses and Program Revenues
35,000

30,000

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

o ~1oooE;:::-'.E:II_~o..!!3!:

• Expenditures

o Revenues

On an overall hasis, the City's total costs in 2009 were $80 million for govGrnmental activities and $16 million for
husiness-type activities. The portions not covei'ed hy program revenues, or nel costs funded hy taxes and other
general revenues, were $57.4 million fot governmental activities anu $3.7 million for business-type activities. The
public safety function (fire and police) h.istorically accounts for the largcst share of net cost, with $28 million in
excess expenses over program reveriues during 2009. Total expenses of $96.6 million are a 5.6 percent increase
over 2008 expenses of $91.5 million. All employees received a pay increase in fiscal year 200<,) resultinginan
overall increase of 5% in lOtal salary and fringe benefit cost. Claims expense in tl'1e lnternal Service Funds increased
by $4 million in fiscal year 2009, primarily due to the $3 million selllement of a lawsuit between the City and the
Firefighter employees over a supplemental pay issue.

The City's total revenUe for 2009 was $106 million, compared to 2008 revenues which were $110.6 million. This
total, covering both governmental and business-type activities, represents a 4.2 percent decrease from 2008.
Although Charges for Services increased slightly more than $1 million during 2009, primarily due to increased
collection for uti Iity user fees, general revenues such as sales taxes, franchise I'ees and other miscellaneous revenues
were down by over $5 million from fiscal year 2008.

The Statement of Activities for 2009 categorizes the City's l'evenues as either program revenues, which are service
charges or grants and contributions for specific governmental or business-type functions, and general revcnues
which include most taxes anu other revenue sources of a government-wide nature.
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Major components of program and general revenues, together with total expenses and the resulting change in net
assets, are summarized below for the 2009 fiscal year.

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(in thousands)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

... -

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Program revenues:

Charges for services $14,254 $14,088 $ 9,823 $ 8,922 $24,077 $23,010

Operating grants &contributions 3,801 5,921 1,199 1,157 5,000 7,078

Capital grants & contributions 4,913 2,917 ],510 1;214 6,423 4,131
General revenues:

Property taxes 7,348 6,613 7,348 6,613

Sales taxes 45,150 45,585 45,150 45,585

Utility franchise taxes 5,446 6,842 5,446 6,842

Riverboat gaming taxes 9,099 8,400 9,099 8,400

Other general revenues 3,699 8,761 227 137 3,926 8,898

Total Revenues 93,70J 99,127 12,759 11,430 106,469 110,557
Expenses:
General government 4,428 4,158 4,428 4,158

Public safety 30,691 28,401 30,691 28,401

Public works 26,205 26,341 26,205 26,341

Planning and development 2,420 3,011 2,420 3,0 II

General services 7,820 5,201 7,820 5,201

Community services 6,102 5,658 6,102 5,658

Interest in long-term debt 2,704 2,851 2,704 2,851

Civic Center 3,265 3,274 3,265 3,274

Golf COillse 1,481 1,248 1,481 1,248

Transit 2,359 2,541 2,359 2,54]

Water 9,139 8,830 9,139 8,830

Total expenses 80,370 75,621 16,244 J5,893 96,614 91,514

Excess before transfers 13,340 23,506 (3,485) (4,463) 9,855 19,043

Transfers (6,554) (6,378) 6,554 6,378
Increase (decrease) net assets $ 6,786 $17,128 $ 3,069 $ 1,915 $ 9,855 $19,043
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As indicated by the above table and the following chart, sales taxes are the City's largest single revenue source,
accounting for 42.4 percent of all government-wide revenue in 2009, with a 1 percent decrease from 2008.
Forecasts of the 2010 revenues wi~J be adjusted as the current trend for the past 6 months is an 8.9 percent reduction
of actual 2008 collection.

Charges for services are increased due to improved collections and increased rates in utility user fees for the second
year in a row. Total operating grants and contributions remained constant but the amounts received in the disaster
recovery fund in 2008 were related to operational expenses as the City prepared for Hurricanes Gustav and Ike, both
of which hit the City in fiscal year 2008. The amounts received in the disaster recovery fund in 2009 were reLated to
capital improvements and repairs to facilities. Capital grant funds for improvements to the lakefront in the amount
of$1.3 million are recorded in the Governmental Activities.

Property taxes increased by 11 percent, as calendar year 2008 was a reassessment year, which is reflected in the
fiscal year 2009 collections. Although the utility franchise taxes for cable and gas were slightly increased, the
electrical franchise tax was reduced by 24 percent over prior yea. however, the City of Lake Charles did recognize
an offset in the cost of electricity, with a savings of nearly $1 million from 2008 expenditures.

The City of Lake Charles and the Ca,lcasieu Parish Police Jury created the Calcasieu Parish Gaming Revenue
District and in April 2007 entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement to pool most gaming revenues received
parish-wide. Revenues for fiscal year 2008 reflect the first full year of pooled gaming. Collections for 2009 wete
an increase of 8.3 percent.

For the second year in a row the decrease in other general revenue is partially attributable to the reduction in interest
earnings. For the entirety of the fiscal year 2007, the Federal Reserve federal funds rate was 5.25 percent. Federal
fund rates were drasticaUy reduced during fiscal year 2008 and 2009 and resulted in much lower investment income.
Also, in fiscal year 2009 there was no developer dbnated infrastructure as had been recorded in the category in the
previous year.

Total expenses increased by 5.6 percent. Pay raises for all employees were effective in the first quarter of fiscal year
2009. The largest increase is in the public safety category as the cost of the $3 million firefighters supplemental pay
lawsuit settlement is reflected in 2009; although it will be paid out over the next three fiscal years.

Transfers from governmental funds to proprietary funds are consistent with 2008 transfers as the General Fund
continues to make transfers for capital improvements. Capital expenditures of bond funds for Water Fund and Civic
Center Fund projects account for an additional $1.4 million transfer of capital assets from the Capital Project Fund
to the proprietary funds and are displayed as capital contributions in the proprietary funds. An additional $2.7
rnjllion was transferred to the Water Fund to pay for capital improvements to the water facilities.
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Revenues by Maj,or Source - All Activities
Openll'ing & capital All other

grants & cOlltrihutions 3.7%

[O.8'Yc

Sa les taxes

42.:\%

Charges for services

22.60/,

Otherlaxes

13.7'!r·

Analysis or Fund Financial Statements

Propelty lnxes

6.9'Y"

This discussion pertains to the financial statements for the various funds into which the City's accounts am Jivided
to comply wilh legal requirements. As [)reviously noted, the two fund classifications representeu in these statements
arc governmental anu proprietary I't,mds.

The City's governmental runds b<.ld a combined fund oalance of $1 03,34R,566 at the end of riscal year 200<;), a
reduction of $1 1.9 mi Ilion rrom fiscal year 2008. Although the General Fund had an operating surplus or $2.8
million, transrer 1'01' capital imrrovements of $5.4 million and $1.25 million 1'01' thc first installment of the
firefighters lawsuit settlement resulted in a $~.8 million reduction or fund balance. The Capital Project Fund had a
$8.5 million reduction or fund balance as thc proceeds of the $~5 million 2007 oond issue are urawn down ['or
comrlctcd and ongoi ng bond projects.

The City's proprietary ['unds' net assets increased from $66,7%,469 in 2008 to $6<;),865,026 in 2009. Thc most
notaok change is the increase in unrestricted net assets, which is nlade up or an increase in the Water Fund due to
replenishing [he runds that had been spent on capital projects over the last several years and from the increasc in the
Transit Fund due to the acquisition of the propcrty that will be used for the new Transit facility.

Gcneral Fund Summary

The Geneml Fund is the City's principal operating fund, accounting for over hall' of all revenue received hy the City
and 59.6 rercent or all governmental activities.

During thc 2008 fiscal year, minor changes were made [0 the General Fund revenue projections and operation
expenditure hudgets. The transfer budget was increased by a total or $4.2 million, representing a 71.8 percent
increase from the original adopted budget to allow for a transfer or $2 million as authorilCd by the City Council to
rlace in a reserve fund ror a new city hall. There arc currently no plans to contiJiUc runding or [)Ians [0 build this

21



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSrS

new facility. Also included in the increase was a transfer of funds to the Risk Management Intemal Service Fund
to pay for the first year's installment of the $3 million firefighters lawsuit settlement.

Operating expenses increased by $1 million. Although salary and fringe benefits increased by $1.5 million due to
increased pay rates, the reductions in the cost of electricity and gasoline neutralized the increase. Use of General
Fund reserves increased to fund transfers for capital improvement projects in the Water, Golf Course and Capital
Project Funds and for transfers to the Risk Management Fund to cover increased claims costs.

Revenues of $56,1 06,052 were not enough to meet the final budgeted amount by $612,895, a 1.9 percent decrease
compared to 2008 figures. Although the budget had been amended to reflect the anticipated reductions in sales tax
and franchise fee taxes, the reductions were even greater than anticipated. Actual Genera1Fund operating
expenditures of $49,855,680 were $4.6 million less than the final budgeted amount. This represents a 2 percent
increase over prior year expendjtures.

The General Fund's 2009 transfers to other funds of $1 0 million included $5.4 million for transfer to other funds for
capital acquisitions and improvements. The total reduction in fund balance was $3,872,094, as opposed to the final
budgeted reduction of $7.9 million. This favorable variance is attributable to the savings in operating cost due to
factors such as staffing vacancies and reduced cost of electricity and gasoline. The City wiJ1 use a portion of the
fund balance in 20 IOta offset the shortfall that is projected in revenues over expenditures.

The General Fund's ending balance in 2009 was $28,237,986, which represents 47 percent of total expenditures and
transfers made from the fund that year compared to $32.1 million or 57 percent at 2008 fiscal year end.

Other Major Fund Summary

The Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund revenues of $9 million represent an 8 percent increase in riverboat
taxes compared to 2008 but are offset by a reduction in miscellaneous revenue of $502,714 that was received in the
previous 10 years ending in 2008 as part of a settlement agreement with Harrah's Casino. Pinnacle Entertainment
unexpectantly ended a $100,000 annual parking lot rental agreement in October 2008. Budgeted operating transfers
to other funds were greater than current revenue resulting in the reduction offund balance by $43,072.

The Community Development Special Revenue Fund revenues of$I.7 million are directly related to reimbursement
for actual expenditures. Community Development expenditures for infrastructure were reduced by 31 percent in
fiscal year 2009 compared to fiscal year 2008.

A Disaster Recovery Special Revenue Fund was established at year end 2005 to account for Hurricane Rita recovery
costs and related disaster relief and insurance revenues. In fisca! year 2008, this fund was used to account for
un budgeted emergency expenditures that were the result of Hurricanes Gustav and Ike, both of which hit our area in
September 2008. Corresponding revenue receivables were recorded for anticipated FEMA reimbursements of the
city emergency preparedness costs. Damage to physical city property was minor for thes~ disasters and accounts for
the expenditures in this fund for 2009, aU of which are reimbursable by FEMA as the damages did not exceed our
current property insurance deductibles. The City has received a favorable outcome for the final outstanding FEMA
appeal for reimbursement for Hurricane Rita. Other outstanding receivables have been recorded in this fund in
connection with Hurricanes Rita, Gustav and Ike, the collection of which is uncertain so therefore there is an
allowance for doubtful collections.

The Waste Water Special Revenue Fund revenues increased by 22 percent in fiscal year 2008 compared to the prior
year. This was due to an 8 percent increase in rates in addition to aggressive colIections of previously unbilled
accounts. Rates were increased by 8 percent again in January 2009 but the increase from year 2008 to 2009 is only
I percent. As has been the practice in the last several years, funds were transfen·ed to the Capital Project Fund for
major sewer rehabilitation projects and to pay for debt service obligations. Fund balance in the fund increased by
$688,924 to $4.2 million.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for over 27 percent of all governmental fund expenditures. Increases in those
expenditw·es are related to contract and design costs for city bond projects as well as other capital project
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expenditures. The transfers out of the fund reflect capital asset expenditures that are recorded in the Enterprise
Funds of $1.4 million and $775,500 for debt service requirements for the 2007 bond issue.

The business-type activities had a $3.1 million increase in total net assets. Capital grants and contributions in the
Civic Center and Golf Course Funds reflect receipts from FEMA for reimbursements for repairs to hurricane
damaged facilities in both 2008 and 2009. Charges for Services revenues increased by 10 percent in 2009. The
largest increase was in the Water Fund, where rates Were slightly increased in January 2009 and better collection
policies were implemented. Major repairs and improvements to the Civic Center continued in 2009, spending
$600,000 in capital funds, bond funds and FEMA funds. Net assets increased for the Golf Course by $581,720 as
construction is nearing completion on a new $1.9 million clubhouse. The Transit Fund had an increase in net assets
of $995,044 due to the purchase of an existing vacant building that will be renovated for the new transit facility.
The value added to the fund related to the purchase of the land, as the building was depreciated past its useful life.
Net assets of the Water Fund increased by $2.7 million as a result of transfers in from the governmental funds to
replenish capita] fund account tbat had been reduced over the last couple of years as major renovations are being
completed on the George West Water Plant.

Capital Assets

The City'S total investment in capital assets at the end of the 2009 fiscal year was $322 million, net of accumulated
depreciation. The increase in capital assets during the year was $18 million which includes $5 million for completed
infrastructure projects and an $8.9 million increase in construction in progress in all areas. The City has many
projects under construction such as road projects, sewer plants and water plant renovations, water and sewer line
projects as weH as the projects on the lakefront.

The voters of Lake Charles approved a $90 million bond issue in November2006. Riverboat gaming revenue, sales
tax revenues and funds from sewer user fees will be used to repay the debt. Proceeds from the loan will be used for
improving streets and roads, park and recreation facilities, water and waste water systems, downtown and/or
lakefront development infrastructure and economic development facilities within the City.

The City issued $35 million in bonds in May 2007 for Phase 1of the $90 million public improvement project. As of
September 30, 2008 the City had spent $12 million on bond projects; fiscal year 2009 spending totaled $14 million
and to date we have spent an additional $5.3 infiscaJ year 20 10. The first big local road project, Power Center
Parkway extension, for $5 million has been accepted as substantially complete since September 30, 2009. McNeese
Street extension road project is under construction and the City wi II be soliciting bids for the Lake and Enterprise
Boulevard extension 'road projects by the summer. Seventeen smaller water and sewer projects have been completed
valued at $823,000. Nine more are currently under contract for $8.3 million. The development of the lakefront has
been on the minds of citizens and progress can be seen with the recent completion of the marina and the constmction
of the lakefront promenade. Many projects are in the design stage and will be under contract by the end of fiscal
year 2010.

This influx of bond revenues will allow the City to complete projects that were included in the tax proposal while
continuing to spend accumulated capital project funds for previously authorized projects. Funds not needed for
repayment of the new debt will continue to be authorized for future projects not included in the bond proposal.

Major capital asset events during the current year included the following:

•

•

•

Completed Local road projects include Holiyhill, Rhodes, Cline, Winterhalter, Lyons, Blake and Fry and
various asphalt overlay ($4 million current year; $5.9 million total)

Completed Greinwich Terrace sewer line rehabilitation, Elliot Road sewer extension and other
miscellaneous sewer projects ($3 million)

Completion of Gulf Highway water lines ($1.4 million)
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• Civic Center improvements/repairs - center section improvements ($500,000 current year; $1.7 million
total)

• Golf Course clubhouse rebuild ($1 million current year)

• Purchase of property for new transit facility - FTA funds ($806,824)

Bond project current year expenses are as foUows:

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Local roads - primarily Power CenterParkway extension and McNeese Street extension ($4 million)

Water projects - primarily E. Prien Lake, Ihles Road and McNeese Street water as well as the water portion
of the two local road projects from above ($ 1.1 million)

Sewer projects - primarily E McNeese and Lyles Peters Road ($4.7 million)

Recreation projects - Adventure Cove and 7 Parks Improvement($1.2 million)

Lakefront Development ($600,000)

Lakefront Marina ($1.5 million)

Lakefront Promenade ($354,000 bond funds plus $1,471,000 CDBG Disaster Recovery Funds)

Components of the City's capital assets are summarized in the following table. As previously noted, reported value
for infrastructure is limited to projects completed since 1975. Additional detail is provided by the financial
statements and notes thereto (Note 4"C).

Capital Assets as of September 30, 2009

(net of depreciation, in thousands)

Business-type

Activities

2009 2008

$ 2,105 $ 1,297

1,964 2,496

49,269 46,507

2,533 2,879

Governmental

Activities

2009 2008

Land $ 12,793 $ 12,282

Buildings 8,197 8,849

Improvements other than
buildings 7,498 6,55I

Equipment 9,722 9,168

Infrastructure 144,694 139,648

ConstTuction in progress 71,757 61,436

Total $254,661 $237,934
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11,630

$ 67,501

]3,062

$ 66,241

Total

2009 2008

$ 14,898 $ 13,579

]0, 161 11,345

56,767 53,058

]2,255 ]2,047

]44,694 139,648

83,387 74,498

$ 322,162 $ 304,175
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Debt Administration

As of September 30, 2009, the City bad $66 million in non-current liabilities compared to $69 million the previous
year. Over 89 percent of the total is bonded debt, all of which is payable from future annual appropriations.
Approximately 62 percent of the outstanding bond principal is due within ten years.

The City bas no outstanding general obligation debt to which a bond rating can be assigned. Two outstanding bond
issues (2003 LCDA loan and 1998 Refunding Bonds) are insured and therefore rated "AAA" by Standard and
Poor's.

The City underwent a formal bond rating process for the first time in recent history in early 2007. They received a
rating of "A+" from Fitcb and a rating of "A" from Standard and Poor's. The 2007 LCDA bond issue had the afore­
mentioned underlying rating but is insured by AMBAC so is therefore sold with a rating of "AAA". Statutory debt
limits are not applicable to any of the City's current outstanding debt.

Although notreflected in these statements, the City refunded $20 million in variable rate bonds in October 2009. At
that time, the City requested a rating from Standard and Poor's and was upgraded to a rating of "A+".

Additional information regarding long-term debt and liabilities is provided in the financial statements and
accompanying notes (Note 4-G).

Economic Outlook and Next Year's Budget

The following information was obtained from Southwest Louisiana Economic Indicators. dated January 29,20 I0
McNeese State University College of Business, Dr. Mitchell Adrian, Dean; H.C. Drew Center for Economic
Development Information Services, Dr. Douglas W. McNiel, Director

•

•

•

G,!ming industry: Riverboat and racetrack casinos in Calcasieu Parish had a decrease in Adjusted Gross
Receipts of $3.9 million for the eleven months of 2009 compared to the same eleven months of 2008
(September of both years has been excluded due to hurricane forced closures in 2008). L'Auberge du lac
Riverboat Casino which opened in 2005 continues to rank as the highest grossing riverboat in the State.
Labor Mark~t trends: Total wages paid in Calcasieu Parish declined by $27 million - to $801 million in the
second quarter of2009 from $828 million in the second quarter of2008. At the end of December 2009, the
Calcasieu Parish unemployment rate was 6.9 percent; the statewide unemployment rate was 7.2 percent;
and the nationwide unemployment rate was 9.7 percent.
Real Estate: Single family home sales accounted for almost 81 percent of the total dolJar volume of all real
estate transactions reported in 2009. 14.2 percent fewer homes were sold in 2009 compared to the previous
year. The average sales price fell by 1.8 percent to $146,424 in 2009 compared to $149,098 in 2008. The
grand total of all real estate sales was just over $242 minion, down from $297 mil]jon the previous year or
18.6 percent.

The information on taxable sales was obtained from the Taxable Sales Analysis prepared by the Calcasieu Parish
School Board Office for the period February 2010.

Taxable sales comparisons for the twelve month period ending February 28, 2010 compared to the twelve
month period ending February 28, 2009 shows a decline of $514 million or 11.2 percent. City of Lake Charles
collections for the fIrst four months of the current fiscal year have a cumulative decrease of 12.57 percent
compared to the same period in the previous fiscal year.

The above items and other economic indicators were considered when preparing the budget for the 2010 fiscal year.

The City adopted a 20 10 General Fund budget which is projected to need to draw down $2,3] 3,28] of its previously
accumulated fund balance to cover the difference benveen projected revenues and operating expenditures and

25



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

transfers to other funds. An additional $600,000 of fund balance is budgeted to be transferred to other funds for
capital expenditures, and $568,634 will be transferred to the Risk Management Internal Service Fund to pay fot the
second payment of the frrefight's supplemental pay lawsuit settlement. Revenues are budgeted to increase by 1.8
percent over the final amended 2009 revenues. However, due to current sales tax collection trends, this revenue
projection will be amended.

Operating expenses were projected to increase by 4.7 percent compared to the amended 2008 budget. Included in
the 2010 adopted budget was a pay increase for all city employees. The City is cUlTently working with all
departments to redllce their current budget by six percent to cover the reduction of revenue.

The City completed 2009 with a General Fund balance in excess of $28 million which exceeds the minimUlTI fund
balance target of35 percent of budgeted expenditures and non-ca.pital transfers.

In June, 2009 the City Council adopted new rate schedules for water and sewer user fee rates which went into effect
in January 2010. Increases in fees are necessary to cover continued operating costs increases and to fund needed
maintenance of plant facilities. The increase in sewer rates calculated an amount necessary to cover the debt service
requirement of a proposed DEQ loan.

The City is moving forward with the projects that were approved in the bond proposition for improvements to roads,
recreation facilities, water and waste water systems, and downtown development. Phase 1 bonds of $35 million
have been spent or are currently obligated. The City will close on Phase 2 bond issue of $40 million on March 30,
20 IO. The Capital Project budget also includes the spending of funds that were previously accumulated for roads
and other projects that were not included in the bond projects.

Requests for Information
This report is intended to provide interested parties with a general overview of the fmances of the City of Lake
Charles. Questions or requests for further financial information should be addressed to the Depcutment of Finance,
City of Lake Charles, P. O. Box 3706, Lake Charles, Louisiana 70602.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement of Net Assets

September 30, 2009

Primary Government Component Units

Governmental Business-Type City City

ASSETS Activities Activities Total Court Marshal

Casb and cash equivalents $ 35,888,465 $ 4,469,547 $ 40,358,012 $1,015,107 $571,763

Investments 69,988,170 1,111,658 71,099,828

Receivables (net ot allowance

for uncollectabJes) 13,949,316 1,597,801 15,547,117 130,925 14,136

liltemal balances 3,250,190 (3,250,190)

Inventories 227,648 33 J,539 559,187

Prepaids 852,401 852,401

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 845,688 845,688 802,000

Capital assets (net of

accumulated depreciation)

Land 12,793,280 2,104,506 14,897,786

Building 8,196,398 1,964,137 10,160,535

Improvements other than buildings 7,498,093 49,269,782 56,767,875

Equipment 9,721,616 2,532,833 J2,254,449 41,495 190,969

Infrastructure 144,693,943 144,693,943

Construction in progress 71,757,399 I 1,630,315 83,387,714

Total assets 378,816,919 72,607,616 451,424,535 1,989,527 776,868

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable & other current liabilities 6,838,760 J,276,874 8,115,634 67,626 8,919

Liabilities payable from restricted assets 839, I93 839,193

Claims payable within one year 6,780,161 6,780,161

Claims payable in more than one year 2,319,570 2,319,570

Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 3,792,494 5,000 3,797,494

Due in more than one year 61,326,IQ4 569,542 61,895,646

OPEB payable 372,135 51,981 424,116

Total liabilities 81,429,224 2,742,590 84,171,814 67,626 8,919

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 204,549,656 67,501,573 272,051,229 41,495 J90,969

Restricted for:

Capital projects 22,674,534 22,674,534

Debt service 3,762,553 3,762,553

Other purpose - Waste Water 4,185,245 4,185,245

Unrestricted 62,215,707 2,363,453 64,579,160 1,880,406 576,980

Total net assets $297,387,695 $ 69,865,026 $ 367,252,72 I $1,921,901 $ 767,949

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement or ActiVItIes

For the Year Ended September 30.2009

Program Revenues
Net (Expense) Rewnue and

Changes in Net Assets

FunctionsfPrograms Expenses
Charges for

Sen'ices

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

CClpital
Grants and

Contributions

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Acti\"ities Total

Component Units
City City

Court Marshal

3.265A81 1.047. J63 - 107.350 - (2. [10.9(8) (2,110.968)
1.-1-80.511 1.126.764 4'+9.269 95.522 95.522
2.359.228 62.8[0 1,198.730 953.886 - (l43.802) (1'+3.802)
9. U9.256 7.586.073 - ( l.553.183) (1.553.183)

16.244.476 0.822.810 1.198.730 1,510,505 (3.712.431) (:UI2'-+31)
$ 96.61.+.660 $24.076.793 $5.000.112 $6.423,698 $ (57'-+01.626) $ (3.712.431) $(6LlI4,(l57) $ $

=
$ 427.804 $ 316.152 $ 197.335 $ 85.683 $

338.560 400.698 - 62,138
$ 766.364 $ 716.850 $ 197.335 $ - - 85.683 62.138

Primary gOvernment:
Governinental activities:

General government
Public s<l[ety
Public works
Planning and de\-clopmenl
General services

Community services
Interest in long-term debt

Total governmeillaillclivilies

Busi ness-type activities
Ci\ic center
Golf Course
Transit
v\{.ater

'" Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Component units:
City COUli
Cit~· Marshal

Total component units

$ 4A2K 106 $ 5.126.923 $ 231.845 $ 116.56] $ 1.047.229 $ $ 1.047.229 $
]O.691.H I 127.542 Ul-l-2.456 414.711 (28.306.732) (23.10().732)

26.20·U~ I0 8.215.969 102.626 1.-+0 J.l26 (16.485.08<;» - (16.485.089)
2A20.483 476.-1-07 828.107 887.636 (228.333) (228.333)
7.819.930 45.786 - 410AI8 (7,36".726) - (7.363.726)
6.101.747 261.356 796.348 1.682.735 (3,361.308) (3,361.308)
2-70:;.667 - - - (2,703,667) (2,703.667)

80.:nO.184 14.253.983 3.801.,382 -1-.91:1,193 (57AOL626) - l57 AO 1.(26)

$

9/)51
282.783

Gcncral reycnues:
Property taxes
Sales taxcs
Franchisc taxes
Rivcrboat taxcs
Grants (lnd contributions not restricted to specific programs
Interest and investment earnings
M iscella neous

Transfers
Total general re\'enues and transfers

Change in net assels
Net assets - beginning
Net assets - ending

Thcn()t~s LO Lh~ linancial sLaLements are an i11l~gral ral1 ,jfthis slaL~l11cnl.

7.348.2-+ I
'+5.149.671

5.446.301
9.099.020

201.846
2.638.358

859.06'+
(0.55-1-.391 )
64.188,1 10

6,786.484
290,60T.211

$ 297,387.695

20ll.000
26.597

6.554.3<)1
6.nO.98X
3.06S,557

66.796A69
$69.8()5,026

7348.2'+1
45.1'+9.671

5.446..101
9,()9Sl.020

401,8-16
2.66.+.955

859.064

70.969.()98

9.855,04 \
357.397.680

$367.252.721

2<)2,434

378.117
1.543.784

$1.921.901

62,138
705.811

$ 767.9.+9



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
September 30, 2009

Riverboat Communit)' Disaster
Gaming DeYelopment Rec()Yer~'

Special Spedal Special
ASSETS General Revenue Re,'enue Reyenue
Cash (Note 4-A) $ 7,968,405 $ 616,079 $ $

[nvestments (Note 4-A) 18,578,495 320,708
Recei ,'able (nd of allowance tor uncollectable)

Accounts (Note 4-B) 4,936,347 4gg,124 18.. 350
Special Assessments
Accrued interest 58,567
IntergovenmlenLaJ (Note 4-B) 86.675 233,093 2,942,212

Due ii-om ot11er funds (Note 4-F) 943194 9,979
Inventon' 227.648
Prepaid itelilS 2,539

Total assds $ l2,80 1,9l0 $ l,424,911 3> 261,422 $ 2,942,212

LIABILITIES
Accounls payable $ 1,~mU62 $ $ 212.729 $ tJ5l).!)()9

Contracls payable
Escrow 544,61 (i 8707
Due to other funds 2J77,75() 2(,2 1,7(,5
Deferred revenues
Other linbiliLies 13,21 ()

lOlal liabilities 4,563,944 22 I,W8 96().774

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for inven\oI)' 227.tl47
Reserved lor prepaid ilems (Note I-D) 2,539
Reserved lor cneunihrnnccs (Note 3-13)
Reserved [e)r debt service
Unreserved, designated Il)r, reponed in:

Subsequent year':,; e.\penditun;:,; in (ienera] Fund 4.619,UrI
Suhsequent year's e.\pendilures in Special RevenLl<.; 390 J 84 53.Don
Designated in Capilal Projects

Unreserved, undcsignated reported in:
General hll1d 23.388,() 17
Special revenue funds 1.014.727 39,724 1.l)2iU3~

lolal fund halances 28,237,98(, 1,424,91 I 39,724 1.981.438
lotal Iwhililics and fund halances $ l2,801.93() $ 1,424,911 $ 26 IA22 'j; 2,942,212

The notes to the tinancial slatements are an integral pari of this statement.
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Wastewater
Special

Revenue
:£ 2,649.996

569,625

1,207,902

687

:£ 4,42S,2 ]0

:£

5,919

242,9()5

Other
Special Revenue

Debt Capital Governmental
Sen-ice Projects Funds

$ 5,098,53 ] $ 9,71],477 $ 3,431,267
1.065,154 45,689,438 ],661,796

70l,l79 135,572
548,872

409,958 1,955
1,576,758 184,079

24.769 700,OUO 308,294

$ 6,737.326 :£ 58,788,1s I0 :£ 5,722,%3

:£ 21.543 $ I ,no,16R :£ Il)(l.157
1.609,726

21,554 4,190
321,516

439,097 15.886

482,194 2,855.780 431,863

Total
(rl,vernmentaJ

Funds
$ 29,475,815

67,885,21(,

7,487,474
548,872
471,167

5,022,817
1.986,236

227,648
2,539

:5 Jll,I07,784

:1' 4,594.994
l,(l09,726

579.067
2,507,238

454.983
13.210

9,759,218

12,75K437
0,255,132

227,647
2,539

12,758,417
6,255,132

306.083

3,879, ]02
4,IR:::>,245

$ 4,428.210
6,255,132

:£ 6)37,126

43,174,59:1

55,933,030
. $ '58,n8,810

170,876

5,120,224
5,29 I. 100

'£ 5,722,9Ci3

4,0IY,183
920,143

43,1 74.593

21,:188,617
12,002,275

103,348,566

Amounts reponc:d t(lF g()vcmmental activities in the statement of net assets
cu'e dillCrcnt hecause:

Capital assets used in govcrnmerltaj ucti\ilics are not finflJ1cial resources
and, thcrd()re arc not reported in the funds

Other long.-term assels are not available to pay Cor cltn'cnt-peJiod expenditLlres
and, thcreJ(>re are dc/CITed in the funds.

lntemal service funds are lIsed by management to charge the costs 01' insurance
to individual funds The assets and liabilities of the intemal service li,mds are
included in gon:mmcntal (lcti\ities in the stuteme11l of net assets.

I,ong.-kml Iiahilities, mcluding: bonds payable, are not due and pavable in the
cl.llTcnl period and. therefore are not reported in the funds.

N~t assets of gm'elllli1cntal activities

JI

254,646.008

454.983

4.362,804

(65,424.6Ci6 )
:£ 297,:187.695



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Riverboat Community Disaster
Gaming Development Recovery
Special Special Special

General Revenue Revenue Revenue
Revenues:

Taxes $ 43,720,965 $ 9,099,020 $ $
Licenses and permits 6,104,766
Intergovernmental 1,992,857 1,702,771 934,585
Charges for services 2,159,162
Fines and forfeitures 322,46]
Miscellaneous 1,805,841 24,381 100 576,663

Total revenues 56,106,052 9,123,401 1)02,871 1,511,248

Expenditures:
Current operating:

General govemment 2,597,384 1,362
Finance ],389,805
Human Resources 317,809
Fire 12,99],169 83,467
Police 13,955,100 1,455
Public works 12,963,414 97,264
Planning and development 1,441,235 851,591 12,432
Community services 12] ,31 5
General services 4,199,764 54,315

Capital projects 887,163
Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures 49,855,680 1,738,754 371,610

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 6,250,372 9,123,401 (35,883) 1,139,638

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 68,75 I
Transfers out (10,122,466) (9,166,473)

Total other fmancing sources (uses) (] 0, 122,466) (9,166,473) 68,75 I

Net change in fund balances (3,872,094) (43,072) 32,868 1,139,638

Fund balance at beginning of year 32,110,080 1,467,983 6,856 841,800

Fund balance at end of year $ 28,237,986 $ 1,424,911 $ 39,724 $ 1,981,438

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Other
Wastewater Special Revenue Total

Special Debt Capital Governmental Governmental
Revenue Service Projects Funds Funds

$ 3,162,787 $ $ 5,534,876 $ 2,389,238 $ 63,906,886
6,104,766

3,119,326 1,101,496 8,851,035
8,180,984 100,688 10,440,834

322,461
46,371 62,834 1,846,903 218,950 4,582,043

11,390,142 62,834 10,501,105 3,810,372 94,208,025

2,598,746
1,389,805

317,809
13,074,636

239,984 14,196,539
6,978,505 20,039,183

2,305,258
4,424,642 4,545,957

4,254,079
457,713 26,599,366 149,482 28,093,724

3,991,176 3,991,176
2,758,796 2,758,796

7,436,218 6,749,972 26,599,366 4,814,108 97,565,708

3,953,924 (6,687,138) (16,098,261 ) (1,003,736) (3,357,683)

6,057,146 9,778,000 1,312,348 17,216,245
(3,265,000) (2,216,697) (1,000,000) (25,770,636)
(3,265,000) 6,057, J 46 7,561,303 3 J 2,348 (8,554,391)

688,924 (629,992) (8,536,958) (691,388) (J 1,912,074)

3,496,321 6,885,124 64,469,988 5,982,488 115,260,640

$ 4,185,245 $ 6,255,132 $ 55,933,030 $ 5,291,100 $ 103,348,566
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the stntement of activities
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmcntal funds

Governmental funds rcport capit(ll olltlays (lS cxpenditures. However.
in the statemcnt of activities thc costs oflhose asscts is allocated
oyer thcir cslimated uscful lives and rcported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount b:-· which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in tlle ClUTcnt period.

Revcnues in the stalcmenl of activities IIUlt do not provide current
financial resources arc nol reported as rcvenue in the funds

The issuance of long-tenn debt provides curreliL financial resources 10

governmcntal funds. while (11C repayment of thc principal of long-term
debt consumcs Ihe currcnt finalicial rcSources of govcrnmental funds.
Neither Irnns(lction. however. hlls any effect of nel assets. This
smounl is the net effcct of these differences in the trcatmcnt of
long-tenn debt (lnd related j[ems.

lntern(ll service funds (lrc used by man(lgement to charge the costs of
insurance [0 individual funds. The net cxpenses of ccrtilin activities of
internal scryice funds is reported within the govcrnmental activilies.

Change in ncl (lsscls of governemcntal ilctivilies

The noles to the limlllciaJ slatements are au integral part of this sta[emcnt.
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(17.257)

:U7X ..582

(l ,468.473)
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
General Fund

Statement of RCWDUeS, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts 2009 Variance with
Original Final Actual . Final Budget

Reyenues:
Taxes $ 4--L656.979 $ -+4.224'-+79 $ 43.720.965 $ (503.514)
Licenses and permits 7,l51,400 7.001,400 6.104.766 (896.634)
Inlergm'ernmental 1.803.050 1.903,050 1.992.857 89.807
Charges for serviccs 1.972.668 1.922.668 2.159.162 236.494
fines and forfeitures 285.400 285,400 322,461 37,<)(>1

MiscellclllcouS J.391,950 1.381.950 1,~W5.841 ·123.891
Total revenues 57,261,447 56,718.947 56.106,052 (612,895)

Expenditures:
Current:

General gm'crnment 2.864.()30 2.864.030 2.597.384 2G6.646
Finance 1.538.664 1.518.664 1.389.805 148.859
Human Rcsources 1.10.546 ~1().546 117,809 12.737
Firc 12.954.421 13.754.42] 12.991.169 763.252
Policc 15.096.485 14.782.399 13,955.10(l 827.299
Public works 15.088.957 14,711.957 12.963.414- I.748.543
Planning 1.%8.722 1.868.722 1.441.235 427.487
General services 4.553.6:'11 4.623.613 4,199.764 423.809

Tolal e.\:pendilurcs 54.195.458 54.474.172 49.855.680 4618./>92

Excess (deficiency) orrev over cw 2.865.989 2,244,575 6.250.172 4,005.797

Other financing SOOI--CCS (uscs):
Transfers out (5.942. 126) (10.136.212) ( 10.122,4(6) 1l.746

Tolal at Iter financing sourccs (uscs) (5,9.:1-2.126) (10.136.212) (10.122.466) 13.746

Net change in fund balances (3.076.137) (7.R91.637) (3.872,094) 4.019.543

Fund balancc al beginning ofyem 32.110.080 12.110.080 32.110.080

Fund balancc al end of year $ 29.013.943 $ 24.218.443 $ 28.217,98o $ 4.019.543

The notes to lhc financial st(l[ClllcnlS arc an intcgral parl of IllisslalelllCl)1.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2009

Budgeted Amounts 2009 Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Taxes $8,500,000 $8,500,000 $9,099,020 $ 599,020
Miscellaneous 134,000 134,000 24,381 (109,619)

Total revenues 8,634,000 8,634,000 9,123,401 489,401

Expenditures:
Other services and charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenUes over expenditures 8,634,000 8,634,000 9,123,401 489,401

Other financing SOUrces (uses):
Transfers out (9,224,573) (9,224,573) (9,166,473) 58,100

Total other financing sources (uses) (9,224,573) (9,224,573) (9,166,473) 58,100

Excess (deficiency) of rev and other
sources over exp and other uses (590,573) (590,573) (43,072) 547,501

Fund balance at beginning of year 1,467,983 1,467,983 1,467,983

Fund balance at end of year $ 877,410 $ 877,410 $1,424,911 $ 547,501

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Community DeYelopmcnt Special Rcycnue Fund

Statement of Revcnues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance ~ Budget and Actua]

For FiscaJ Year Ended September 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts 2009 Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:

Intergovernmenta I $ 1.388.174 $ [,963,392 $ 1.702,771 $ (260.621 )

Miscellaneous 100 100

Tolal re\"cnues 1,388.174 1,963,392 1,702.871 (260,521)

Expenditures:

Current:

Personal ser\ices 206.304 J64.733 164.728 5

ConlIacl and operalion,,] I, 193.327 680.819 609.984 70.835

Malcrial and supplies 6.620 I.74() I. 745

Special currenl 44,737 7.:U165 75T)4 (2()9)

Capit<ll oullay 1.117.()94 887.1()3 nO.53]

TOlal expenditures 1.-:1-50.988 2.039.857 1.7:18..754 lOUOl

Excess (deIicicnc\") o[ revenues

over ex pendi lures (62.814) (76.465) (15.883) 40.582

Other financing sources:

Transfers in 62.814 76.465 6~U51 (7,714)

TOlal olher financing sources ()2.814 7(cA65 (8)51 0,714)

Excess (deficiency) of rev and other

sources over e.'p and olher uses 32.8(,8 32.8()8

Fund balance al beginning of~'ear 6.856 6.85() 6.85()

Fund balance <It end or ycar $ 6.856 $ Cdi56 $ 39.724 $ :12.868

The notes to the financial slalements arc an integral pari of (his stalement.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Disaster Recovery Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2009

Budgeted Amounts 2009 Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:

Intergovermnental

(net of allo\\ance for uncolleclabJe) $ $ 549.89 J $ 9:14.585 1> 384.694

.!'v'[iscel raneous 100,000 576,663 576,663

Tolal revenues 100.000 549,891 1,511.248 9GU57

Expenditu res:

CurrclJt:

General Govcrmnenl 1.:162 UG2

Fire 83.468 83.467 l

Police 1.457 1.455 2

Public works 97.272 97.264 8

Planning and development !35.034 12.·+32 122.602

Communit\' services 12UJ6 J2U15

General services 100.000 375.2:18 54.315 :nO,923

Tolal c:\penditurcs 100.000 815.147 37 J.(>l0 443.537

E:\ccss (deficiency) of j'C" over e:\p (265.256) I, 139.638 ( 1.404.894)

Fund balancc al beginning of year 841.800 841.800 841.800

Fund balance al end o[ycar $ 841.800 $ 570.544 $ 1,981,438 $1.40·+'894



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Waste Water Special Re\'enue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
FOI' Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts 2009 Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Reyenues:
Sales tax revenue $ 3,264.000 $ 3.22'-1-,000 $ 3.162.787 $ (61.213)
Ch<lrges for services 7.050.000 7.450.000 8.180.984 730.984
Miscellaneous 40,750 40.750 46.371 5,621

Total revenues 10,354,750 10.714,750 1U9(U-1-2 675.392

Expenditures:
Personal sCr\ices 2,563,039 2,512.925 2.48J.818 JU07
Contractual and operational sCr\ices 3.168.370 3.200.078 2.589,341 610,737
Matcrials & supplies 1.029.415 1.050.mn 95l.J 16 98.%7
SpeciaJ Current Charges ~muoo 968.l60 956.230 11. ~30
Capitaloutla\ 626,350 494.428 457.713 ]('.715

Total expenditures 8,225,674 8.225.674 7,436.218 7X9.456

E.\cess (deficiency) of rcv ave!' o:p 2. j 29.076 2.489.076 .1.953.924 1.464.848

Other linancing sources (uses):
Transfers OLlt (3,265,000) (3,265,000) (3.265,000)

Total other financing sources (uses) (.1.265.()()O) (3.265.000) (J,265,OOO)

Excess (defi.cicncy) of rev and olher
sources over exp and other uses ( 1.135.924) (775.924) 68~Lt)24 1'-+64.848

Fund balance at beginning of year .1.496.321 3.496,32J 3.496.321

Fund b<llance al end o[year $ 2.360.397 $ 2.720.JY7 $ 4.185.245 $ 1.464,848

The noies to the financial Slalements are all integral p<ln of this stalement.



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2009

Business-t}pe ActiYitks-Enterprise Funds

·1-2.955 iOO 827

no.900 82.7·n 506,319
185.0[6 200.000

23.72] 71.315

l.658.477 404.456 L 135.730

$ 3,154.730 $ 4.469.547
627,728 I. ] 11.658

845.688 845.688

615.17-'\- 659.056

62.783 938.745
:185.016

436.4R3 331539

5.342.586 8.741.249 10.51,4.373

416,708
2.278

$ 6.-1-12.650
2.102.954

Go\crJnnentaJ
Activities ­
InternaJ

Sen'ice Funds
Totals
2009

Water
Utilit\'..

Public
Transit

$ 114.433
1, 14.15]

65.262

Golf
Course

$

Ch'ic
Center

$ 1.135.122
169.779

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash
Investments
Restricted cash:

Customer deposits
Accounts receivable (net of allo\\ance

for uncollectible)
AccllJed interest receivable
Intergo\cmnlental receivables
Due fraln other funds
Inventories
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Capital assets:
Land
Buses
Buildings and structures
Improvements
Conslruction in Progress
Equipment. furniture and fixtures

Total capita 1assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (nel of
accumlatcd depreciation)

Total assets

1.005,697 ~;o(i. ~2..j. 231.9X5 2.104.50G
J.601.70X 1/)61.70X

18.768.595 1,97.195 54.460 459.284- 19.679.534-
14.247,O2l 2.099.81,2 59,1,01,.709 75,650.562

167.568 1.783.910 99.576 9.579.261 11.630.315
3.278.971 5XO.998 LU5l J ,695.400 5.568.722 1,0,225

36.4()2.157 5.927.632 2.635.9J9 71.26\).639 116.295.347 3G.225
n,230,7 J] L 125,538 1,415.286 23.022,2:17 48,793,774 21,504

1].2:11.:\-44- l802.0\)4 1,220.633 -'1-8,247.402 07.501.571 l'k72J
]-'k889.921 5.206.550 2,356.363 53.789.988 76.242.822 10.549.0\)4-
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Business-t.'pe Acthities-Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities -
Ch'ic Golf Public Water Totals Internal

Center Course Tnmsit Ut iii t." 2009 Sen'ice Funds
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 75.713 41.079 105)19 890.384 1.112.395 41. 7(13
Conlracts payable 15.100 81.360 396 32.938 129.794
Customer deposits payable 839.193 839,193
Escrmv 22,990 11.694 34.684
Due to other [ltnds 305,669 125.287 182.769 6U.725 211
Accrued insuranc claims 6.455.1() I
Incurred-not reported claims :)25,000

Total currenl liabilities 419.472 134.133 230.902 1.945.284 2.729.79] 6.822. J35

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences 129.817 53.934 53.826 336.965 574.542 ()(),714

OPES liability 6,833 8.<)08 6.471 29.767 5l.981 5.353
ACChlcd insurance claims-noncurrent 2.319.570

Total non-currcl1t liabilit ics I36,(J50 62.842 60.299 3(,1'i.732 026.523 2385.,637
Total liabilities 550. J22 )96.975 291.201 2.312.016 3,350.314 9,207.772

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 13.231.444 4.802.094 1.220.613 48.247.402 07.501.573 14.721
Unrestricted I. J02.355 207.481 844.529 3.230.570 5.384.,935 1,126.601
Total net asscts $14,333,799 $5,<)09.575 $2.065,162 , $51,477,972 72,886.508 $ 1.:>41,J22

Adjustments (0 reDect the consolidation of internal service fund activities
related to enterprise runds

Change in net assets of business-t~'peactivities

The noles 10 the financial statcments arc an integral parlor this statement.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement of Revenues, Exrenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
FOi" the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2009

Business-type

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal setyices
Malerials ,md snppljes
Maintenance
Heat. light and power
Transportation
General and administration
Claims and losses paid
Deprecialion

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Opcrati ng grants-governmental agencies
Interest
Gain (loss) on retirement or trcmsfer of capital assets
Olher - governmenlal disasler recovery

Tolal nonoperating revenues
Income (loss) before operating transfers

Ci,ic
Center

$ 1,045,959
1,204

1,047,163

1.051.690
209,943
140.-1-2]

318,052

270.95:1

Lf j 1.245
3.202.:104.. ..

(2.155.141)

200,000
6_130

107,350
J 13.480

(1.8.:1-1.66J)

$

Golf
Course

1.125,7..1-3
L02l

1.126.764

617.605

:177.640
25.018
47.6] 9

nn.2(;9

205,)56
1.-:l·61,207

(334.44])

447

449.269

449,716
115.273

Capital contributions Clnd transfers:
Capital contributions - governmental agencies
Clpital contributions - governmcntal funds
Transfers in

Total capital contributions and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets at beginning of\'car
Nct assets <It end of year

The nmes (0 the financial st<l(CIl1CJ\lS are an integral part of this statement.
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2RO.77]

1,22<),169
1,509.<)40
(.1.11.721)

14.665.520
$ 14.333.799

-1-57,539
457.5.19
572.812

4.436.76:1
$ 5.009.575



Activities-Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Acth'ities -
Public Water Totals Internal
Tt'ansit Utility 2009 Sen'ice Funds

$ 57.832 $ 7,208.167 $ 9,437,701 $ 10.661.165
4.978 377.906 385)09 157,832

62.810 7,586,073 9.822.810 10.818.997

6~·3.2YO 2.995.796 5.108.381 473.409
:n.694 l.457.166 2.076.441 5.236

! 10.844 232.562 50lJ.745
1.339 826.040 1.193.050

214.060 214.060
869.936 1.748. \78 1.076,3:36 2.761.425

] 1.96-t022
162.526 1)73.069 2.95J .9% 2.227

2,O:n.689 8.632,811 15,330,0 II 15.206.319

( 1.970,879) (1,046,738) (5,507.20 I) (4.387.322)

1.198.730 1.3n.730
3.683 16)37 26.597 n.299

(77,SO}) (77.803) (10.112)
556,619

1.202.413 (61.466) 1..904.143 82.187
(768.4o(j ) (].108.204) (Hl03.058) (4,305.135)

953,886 953.886
1.083.761 1.364.532

803.151 2,700,000 5.189,859 2.000,000
1.757.(137 3.783.76] 7.508.277 2.000.000

988.571 2.675.557 3.905.2J <) (2,305,135)
1.076.591 48.802.415 3.646.457

$ .2.065.162 $ 5l.477,972 $ 1.:)41.322

Adjustments (0 reflect the consolidation of
iOlernal sen' icc fund activities related
to en1erprise funds (836.662)

Change in lIet assets ofbusiness-lype activities $ 3.068.557
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES~LOUISIANA
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2009

Civic
Center

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Internal activity - payments to other funds

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flow fl'om noncaJlital financing acthitics:
Operating subsidies
Shared revenue from governmental agencies

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital asscts
Contracts payable
CapitClI subsidies from governmental agencies
Capital transfers

Net cash provided (Ilscd for) capital and related financing activitics

Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities
Procceds [rom sale and maturities of investment securitics
Interest on investments

Net cClsh provided (used for) investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cClsh equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at begimling of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating actiYities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation expense
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in due [rom other funds
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(lncreasc) decreasc in prepaid items
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payablcs
Tncrease (Decrease) in miscellaneous payables
Increase (Decrease) in customcr deposit account
Increase (Decrease) in compensated absences payable
Increase (Decrease) in OPEB liability
Incrcase (Decrease) in due to other funds

Tota! adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activitics

$ 1.048.286
(1.019.767)
(1.033.639)

(196,021 )
(1.201.141)

729) 70
200.000
929.170

(204.869)

500.000
295,131

(1.805)
210.000

6,130
214)25
237.485
897.637

$ 1,J3S,122

$(LI55J41)

1,211245
Ll23

200,000
(2,954)

2.822
(84.807)

15.759
0.83.1

(396.021)
954,000

$ ( 1.20 1.141 )

Noncash investing and capital acti:vities:
Assets transferred in/out cost $60,78I and had accumulated depreci<:ltion of $-+8, 198 Net loss equaled $12,583.
Assets rctired costs $505.757 and hCld accumulated depreciation of$430.-:l-25.Nelloss equClled$75.332.
Capital assets expenditures of $1.364.532 were paid from gm'ernmenta( funds 311d are

recorded clS a capital contibution on the statement of activity in the proprietary funds.
Change in the fair valuc of in\,cstUlcnts rcslllted in an unrcalized gain of $ 1,537 at year end 2009 and
an unrealized gain of $3,770 at year end 2008. 44

Thc notes to the financial statemcnts are an integral part of this st<ltemenl.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Lake Charles, Louisiana (the City) was incorporated in 1867, and operates under a
home rule charter, which became effective in 1961. The City utilizes the Mayor-Council fOrIn
of government and provides a full range of munioipal services under a centralized system of
administration.

The accounting and financial reporting policies of the City conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governments. Such policies also conform to the
requirements of Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:5 [7 and to the guides set fOlth in the Louisiana
Municipal Audit and Accoun6ng Guide, and to the industry audit guide, Audit of State and
Local Governmental Units. Following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies.

The accompanying financial statements include all funds, which are directly controlled by the
City, and which constitute the primary government as defined for financial reporting purposes.
In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, this report also includes
component units, which are legally separate from the City but considered to be fiscally
dependent on the primary government. Component units are discretely presented in this report,
are reported for periods and balance sheet dates which differ from the City's, and have been
separately audited. Further disclosures concerning such units are provided below.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Fin.ancia] data of component units is displayed on the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of
Activities. The repOlted component units are as follows:

City Court of Lake Charles:

This entity is created by state statutes, which provide for its governance by independently
elected officials and has a jUrisdictiOnal area extending beyond the corporate limits of the City.
Although legally separate, City Court is fiscally dependent upon the government because of the
statutory requirements that the City provide and maintain the physical facilities necessary for its
operation. The relationship between the City and City Court is such that exclusion would cause
the City's financial statements to be incomplete. Financial data reported for the City Court
component unit is from its separately audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2008.

Ward Three Marshal - City Court:

The office of Ward Three Marshal, which is governed by an independently elected official, is
created in the same statutory manner as City Court and has a cOlTesponding area of jurisdiction.
Although legally separate, the office of Ward Three Marshal is fiscally dependent upon the
government because of the statutory requirements that the City provide and maintain the
physical facilities necessary for its operation. The retationship between the Marshal and the
City is such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be incomplete.
Financial data reported for this component unit are from its separately audited financial report
for the year ended December 31, 2008. Complete financial statements of the individual
component units are available from the City of Lake Charles at 326 Pujo Street, Lake Charles,
Louisiana 70601.
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NOTES TO FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statement

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and
its component units. For the most part, the effect of the interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and the
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from busin,ess-type activities, which rely
primarily on charges for services for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues includel) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are repotted as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the proVider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the govemment considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generaJly are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the Ctnl'ent fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual so they have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the government.

The City of Lake Charles reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for receipt and subsequent
expenditure or transfer of revenue from casino riverboat admissions taxes, development
contributions and related City-owned parking.
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NOTES TO FINANCiAL STATEMENTS

Community Development Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for the receipt and
subsequent expenditure of federal funds received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for housing and community development purposes, including related revenues
which are restricted to such purposes by grant agreements. The principal revenue source
accounted for within this fund is the Community Development Block Grant Program.

Disaster Recovery Fund - This fund accounts for the receipt of intergovernmental and
miscellaneous revenue and subsequent expenditure of such funds necessary to recover from
disasters.

Waste Water Fund - This fund accounts for the receipt and subsequent expenditure of sewer use
charges, dedicated taxes, and other current charges dedicated to operations, maintenance and
improvement of the City's sanitary sewerage system.

Debt Service fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and the
payments made for principal, interest, and related costs on long-term debt obligations of
governmental funds.

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds.)

The City of Lake Charles reports the following proprietary funds:

Civic Center - This fund accounts for the activities oftbe Lake Charles Civic Center.

Golf Course - This fund accounts for the activities of Mallard Cove Golf Course.

Transit Fund - This fund accounts for the operation of the City's transit system.

Water Fund - This fund accounts for the operation of the City's water system.

The City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the insurance needs
provided to other departments of the City, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December I, 1989,
generally are foUowed in both the govemment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance
for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has
elected not to follow subsequent plivate sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity ha~ been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this rule are paymelits between the govemment's water function
and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concemed.

Amounts reported as program revenues include l) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributjons, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. lntemaJly dedicated resources are report~d as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in

48



NOTES TO FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS

connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The intent oftbe governing body is
that the costs (expenses) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges and are reported as program revenues.

Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenues and expenses
are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

The City's investment program is authorized and limited by state statue and city ordinances to
purchases of securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government and its agencies or
instrumentalities and participation in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP). LAMP is a
non-profit corporation formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer and organized under the laws of
the State of Louisiana, which operates a local government investment pool equivalent to a money
market fund. LAMP invests in short-term instruments permitted by statute.

Investments for the government, its component units and for LAMP are reported at fair value.

2. Receivables and payables

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."

All receivables, including those for grass cutting and demolition assessments in the governmental
funds and water and sewer charges in the enterprise funds, are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectables. The allowance for estimated uncollectible receivables is established based on historical
collection experience and other relevant circumstances.

There appears to be concentration of credit risk with regard to general accounts receivable and more
specifically accounts receivable for water and sewer user fees in the Waste Water Special Revenue
Fund and the Water Utility Enterprise Fund. The City's ability to collect the amounts due from the
users of the City water and sewer system and others (as reflected on the financial statements) may be
affected by significant economic fluctuations, natural disaster or other calamity in this one
concentrated geographic location.

The City property taxes must be levied by December Ist of each year. Property taxes are due by
December 31 st and are delinquent by January 1s1. Delinquent property taxes are assessed interest at
one and one-quarter percent per month for the period of delinquency. Property owners with taxes still
delinquent by March 1st are notified by certified mail that they have twenty days to pay delinquent
property taxes. The lien date is the date in which the tax assessor files the tax roll with the Clerk of
Court, which is the same as the levy date. Sale of delinquent propelties is held each year as soon as
possible after May Ist. Most taxes are collected in December, January and February.

3. Inventories and prepaid items

Inventory is valued at average cost. Inventory in the General Fund consists of materials and supplies
held for consumption, and are accounted for under the consumption method where expenditures are
recorded when the goods are used. Inventories are also held in the enterprise funds. These consist of
concession supplies held for sale to the public and materials held for water system maintenance and
improvements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit subsequent periods are recorded as prepaid
items in both governmental-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Restricted assets

Customer deposits in the Water Enterprise Fund are classified as restricted assets on the halance sheet
because their use is limited to repayment of deposits to qualified customers or upon termination of
service.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges,
sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the goverrunent-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital' assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets Jives are not capitalized.

Major outlays fot capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Historically, capital assets constructed during the past 30 years had been financed on a pay-as-go basis.
However, the City incurred debt in 2003 for the construction of a new sewer treatment facility and
issued bonds in 2007 to fund capital improvements, such as roads, water, sewer, recreation and
downtown development activities.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets
Building.s
Improvements other than buildings
Public Domain infrastructure
System infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

6. Compensated Absences

Years
20
20
10 - 50
10 - 50
7

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation pay
benefits. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-Wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. An amount is recorded in governmental fund statements equal to the amount of
unused vacation accruals payable to employees who had tenninated as of the end of the fiscal year was
$104 OD September 30,2009.

Vacation is based on the number of years service and is earned as follows:
First four years 10 days
Five to nine years 15 days
Ten to nineteen years 20 days
Nineteen years and over 25 days
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Sick pay is based on the number of years service and is carried as follows:

First three years
Four years and over

8 hours per month
12 hours per month

Sick pay is not vested except at retirement, where accumulated sick pay hours up to six hundred (600)
are payable to non-civil service retirees. The termination payment liability was cal.culated by
developing a ratio based on historical data of sick leave paid at tennination compared with sick leave
accumulated and by applying that ratio to the sick leave accumulated by the current employee
population as of September 30, 2009. Current sick pay benefits recorded in the governmental fund
statements would be the amount of unreimbursed sick leave payable to employees who had terminated
their employment as of the end of the fiscal year; however no such liability existed on September 30,
2009. The entire estimated termination payment liability is recorded in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements.

City employees may receive compensatory time off with pay in lieu of overtime pay for work in excess
of regular scheduled hours. Accumulation of unused compensatory time is limited, and any unused or
unpaid portion is payable upon separation from employment. Compensatory time is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary funds fmancial statementS. A current portion of
com'pensatory time would be recorded in dle governmental fund statement that would equal the amount
ofrcimbursable leave payable to employees who had terminated their employment as of September 30,
2009; however there was no current portion at that time.

At September 30,2009 the total liability reported on the Statement of Net Assets for accrued vacation,
sick and compensatory time was $2,938,394 for Governmental Activities, which includes $60,71.4
from the Internal Service Funds. The amount recorded in Business-Type Activities equaled $574,542.

7. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-telm debt and other long-tenn obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize principal payments during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.

8. Fund equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for specific purposes.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that could be subject to change.

The fund financial statements show reservations of fund balance for inventory, prepaid items,
encwnbrances and debt service. There are also unreserved designations for subsequent year's
expenditures and capital projects. All of these items are included as elements of net assets on the
government wide statement.

2. Reconciliation of Govemment-wide Financial Statements
A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the

government-wide statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the govenunent-wide statement of net assets.
One element of that reconciliation explains "long telm liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds." The details of this $65,424,666
difference are as follows:
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2003 LCDA Bonds payable
2007 LCDA Bonds payable
Premium on 2007 LCDA Bonds payable

(to be amortized ovet the life of the debt)
Pension refunding bonds
Cooperative endeavor-Sales Tax Dist. No.3
Compensated absences
Other post ernployee benefits (OPEB) payable
Police benefits guarantee

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental
funds to arrive at net assets -governmental activities

$20,100,000
32,195,000

973,952
5,005,000
3,764,492
2,877,680

366,782
141,760

$65.424,666

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, ano changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net
assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One
element of that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense." The details of the $16,725,706 are as fonows:

Capital outlays
Depreciation expense
Loss on retirement of capital assets

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities

$25,563,637
(8,802,183)
( 35,748)

~J6,725>IQ6

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The issuance of long-term debt provides current
financial reSources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-tenn debt
consumes the cUrrent financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction however has any
effect on net assets." The details of this $3,478,582 are as follows:

Principal repayment:
Pension refunding bonds
LCDA demand bonds
2007 LCDA public improvement bonds
Porice benefit guarantees
Sales tax increment financing agreement
Sears building installment loan
Compensated absences
Other post employee benefits (OPEB)

Cooperative endeavor-Sales Tax Dist No 3
Proceeds from premium on 2007 LCDA Public Improvement Bonds

(to be amortized as interest over life of debt)
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total governmental
Funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities

$ 910,000
910,000

1,175,000
47,365

2,726
700,000

(304,856)
(366,782)
350,000

55,129

$ 3428,582

C. Explanation of certain differences between the proprietary fund statement of net assets and the
governmental-wide statement of net assets.

The proprietary fund statements of net assets include reconciliation between net assets - total enterprise
funds and net assets of business-type activities as reported in the governmental-wide statements of net
assets. The description of the sale element of that reconciliation is "Adjustment to reflect the consolidation
of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds." The details of this $(3,021,482) ate as
follows:
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Internal payable representing costs in excess of charges to the
business-type activities - prior year

Internal payable representing costs in exCess of charges to the
business-type activities - current year

Net adjustment to decrease net assets - enterprise funds to
arrive at net assets - business-type activities

3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary information

$( 2, 184,820)

836,(62)

$(3,021.482)

The City annually adopts and implements an operating and capital budget in accordance with
requirements of the City Charter and applicable state law for the General Fund and aU Special Revenue
and Proprietary Funds. The Capital Projects Fund's budget is a project based capital budget. Policies
and procedures with respect to budget adoption and budgetary control are as follows:

l. The Mayor submits the proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing October I to
the City Council no later than August 15. This budget includes proposed expenditures and the
m.eans of financing them.

2. A summary of the proposed budget and notices of public hearing are published in accordance with
statutory requirements.

3. The proposed budget is subject to one or more public hearings before the City Council prior to
adoption by ordinance, which must occur no later than September 15. The City Chalter requires a
two-thirds vote of the City Council to amend the proposed budget submitted by the Mayor.

4. Expenditures are legally restricted to budgetary appropriations at the department level within the
General Fund and at the fund level for Special Revenue Funds, which are not departmentalized.
Revisions, which alter the total expenditures of any such department or fund, must be approved by
budget amendment ordinance adopted by the City Council at the request of the Mayor. Transfers
of budgeted amounts between expenditure objects or programs witbin the saine department and
fund are authorized to be made administratively by the Director of Finance.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the
General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and the Capital Projects Fund, which is budgeted on a
project basis. Fortnal budgetary integration is not employed in the Debt Service Funds because
effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through the respective bond indentures and
provisions.

6. Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Comparisons of budgeted and
actual results of operation are presented for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds in the
accompanying financial statements. The Capital Projects Fund is not included in tbis budget and
actual comparison, as the capital budget which encompasses that fund is presented on the basis of
cumulative as opposed to annual budget amounts.

7. All budgetary appropl'iations except capital project budgets lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

8. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council. The originally
adopted General Fund budget was $60,337,584. Amendments in the amount of $4,273,000
resulted in the final General Fund budget of $64,610,584 as presented in the accompanying
statements. Revenue projections numbers were amended to account for the reduction in sales tax
and other various revenues. Reduction in the cost of fuel accounted for reductions in the police
and public works department but the fire department had to be amended to account fOT overtime
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expenses. The first of four payments for the fIrefighter's supplemental pay lawsuit was budgeted
to be transferred to the Risk Management Fund. The City council also approved a transfer of
undesignated fund balance to the Capital Projects fund, where it will be held in reserves for a new
city hall.

The originally adopted amount of all Special Revenue Funds was $29,203) 03. Amendments in
the amount of $998,940 resulted in the fInal total Special Revenue fund budget of $30,202,048.
An annual amelldmentis necessary in response to grant awards and grant balance carry-overs
involving Special Revenue Funds, primarily the Community Development Fund.
Intergovernmental revenues were increased in the Disaster Recovery Fund as the city continued to
repair to city facilities continue for damaged in both Hurricanes Rita and Ike.

B. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditures of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of fonnal budgetary integration in the General fund, Special Revenue Funds,
and Capital Projects Funds.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, outstanding encumbrances at year end for
which goods or services are received are reclassified to expenditures and accounts payable. All other
encumbrances in the annual budgeted funds are reversed at year end and are either canceled or are
included as reappropriations of fund balance for the subsequent year. Encumbrances at year-end in funds
that are budgeted on a project basis, including Enterprise Fund construction projects, are calTied forward
along with their related appropriations and are not subject to an annual cancelJation and reappropriation.

C. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations and Deficit Fund Equity

The Risk Management Internal Service Fund had deficit net assets of $1,009,502 at fiscal year ended
September 30, 2009. Estimated claims payable were higher than anticipated in this fiscal year. The
entire liability for the firefighter lawsuit settlement is recorded in this fund. It will be paid out over the
next three years and will be funded by the General Fund as each annual payment is made.

D. Unfavorable Revenue Variance

The General Fund revenues of $36, 106,052 were $612,895 Jess than final budget projection of
$56,718,947. Although the City anticipated a shortfall in sales tax revenues and had amended the
projectiOlis, the actual collections were even less than expected. Franchise fees from the electric company
were also substantially less than budgeted.

The intergovernmental revenue of the Community Development Special Revenue Fund was $1,702,87 I
wh ich was $260,521 less than the $! ,963,392 budgeted amOlll1t. This unfavorable variance is attributable
to variances in gtant program revenues, which are budgeted on the basis of grant awards but actually
received as expenditure reimbursements in that fund. The Grant Special Revenue Fund revenues were
$1,098,735 which was $357,850 less than the $1,456,585 budgeted amount. This unfavorable variance is
attributable to variances in grant program revenues, which are budgeted on the basis of grant award but
revenues are actually received as expenditure reimbursement in that fund. The Recreation Special
Revenue Fund revenues were $3] ,722 less than the budgeted amount of $2,535,205 due to decrease in
sales tax revenUe and less than anticipated charges for services. The interest earnings were $66,228 less
than budgeted in the Facility Renewa.l Special Revenue Fund due lower return on investments.
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4. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Deposits and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's
portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet within "cash and investments" or
"restricted cash and investments" where applicable. Legal and contractual provisions with respect to
deposits and investments are substantially the same for all funds and fund types.

Demand deposits of the City are maintained under a banking agreement in which account balances are
coIlateralized entirely by U.S. Treasury and government agency securities held by a Federal Reserve
Bank in the City's name. The bank balance of such deposits at September 30, 2009 was $41,084,523
(carrying amount $36,476,410).

The total includes restricted cash in the amount of $845,688 from customer deposits in the Water
Utility Enterprise Fund. The amounts do not include petty cash of $24,075 or $4,007,809 that is on
deposit with a third party for bood reserves and the administration of the City's insurance claims. It
also does not include a cash overdraft of $ 153,587 reported as accounts payable in the Community
Development Special Revenue Fund, $542,820 cash overdraft reported as accounts payable in the
Disaster Recovery Special Revenue Fund.

The carrying amounts of cash deposits for component units at their respective balance sheet dates were
$1,015,107 for City Court and $571,763 for the Ward Three Marshal. These amounts were fully
covered by federal deposit insurance or are collateralized entirely by U.S. Treasury and government
agency securities held by a Federal Reserve Bank in the entity's name.

Investments

As of September 30, 2009 the City had the following investments and maturities:

Investment type
U.S. agencies callable
U.S. agencies callable
Repurchase agreement - bond funds
Louisiana Asset Management Pool

Maturity
Less than I year
1-5 year

Fair Value
$1,793,069
46,626,660
15,973,408
6,706,691

~"22.m

The City's investment program is authorized and limited by state statue and city policy to purchases of
securities issued Or guaranteed by the U.S. Government and its agencies or instrumentalities and
participation in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP), a non-profit local govemment
money-market type (2a-7-1ike) investment pool sponsored by the State of Louisiana. This pool is rated
AAAm by Standard & Poor's. Security investments are carried at fair value; investment in LAMP is
carried at cost, which approximates market. With the exception of LAMP, all of the City's
investments are held in the City's name by its custodial bank. The City's investment policy does not
speciflcal)y limit investment maturities, except for a general requirement that funds used for operation
be invested within a three-year final maturity range. This policy assumes that calJable ihYestments will
not be called. The City's investmentpolicy states that financial or credit risk, as distihguished from
market risk, is not acceptable for any investment in either short or long term investment categories.

The City does not directly invest in commercial paper, which are permitted by state statute. However,
such investments are made by LAMP, SUbject to concentration and maturity limitations of its
investments policy.
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Investments as of September 30, 2009 were concentrated with the following issuers:

Issuer
Federal Home Loan Bank
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
federal National MOItgage Association
federal Fann Credit Bank

Fair Value
$12,751,192

9,784,494
21,874,123

4,005,620

All of the above listed investment instruments have a Standard and Poor's rating of AAA. The City's
investment policy does not specifically limit concentration with individual issuers.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the City of Lake Charles's individual major funds and nomnajor and internal
service funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncoJ1ectable accounts are as
follows:

Governmental-type Riverboat I Community Disaster
Activities GeneraJ Gami!1g Development Recovery

Receivables:
Accounts $1,397,389 $ 0 $ 18,350 $ 0
Taxes 2,701,498 488,124 0

- -0-

Property standards &
0 °special assesmnt 1,628,89J °~ntetest 58,567 0 0 °Intergovernmental 86,~75 0 233,093 4,957,114

Gross receivables 5,873,020 488,124 251,443 4,957,114
Less: allowance for
uncollectabJe (791,431) ° 0 (2,014,902)

Net total receivables 5,081,589 488,124 251,443 2,942,212

Norunajor Total
Governmental-type Waste Debt Capital & Other Governmental
Activities (continued) Water Service Projects Funds Activities

Receivables:
Accounts $1,318,551 $ ° $ 266,375 $ 428,050 $ 3,428,715
Taxes 248,460 ° 434,804 124,230 3;997, 116
Property standards &
special assessment 0 J ,097,744 0 0 2,726,635
Interest 687 0 409,958 4,233 473,445
Intergovernmental ° 0 1,576,758 184,079 7,037,719

Gross receivables 1,567698 1,097,744 2,687,895 740,592 17,663,630
Less: allowance for
uncollectible (359,109) (548,872) 0 0 (3,714,314)

Net total receivables $1,208,589 $548,872 $2,687,895 $321,606 $13,949,316
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pplIca e a owances or unco ecta e accounts are as 0 ows:
Civic Public Total Business- Total

Business-type Center Golf Course Transit Water Type Activities Governmeht
Activities
Receivables:
AccoW1ts $ 42,955 $ ]00 $ 827 $968,471 $],012,353 $4,441,068
Taxes

-

° ° ° ° 3,997,116°Propelty standards &
-

special assessment ° ° ° ° ° 2,726,635
Interest ° ° ° ° 0 473,445
Intergovernmental 286,900 82,743 I 506,3] 9 62,783 938,745 7,976,464
Gross receivables 329,855 82,843 507,146 ] ,031 ,254 1,951,098 19,614,728
Less: allowance for

° ° ° (353,297) (353,297) (4,067,6J1)
uncollectable
Net total receivables $329,855 $ 82,843 $507,146 $ 677,957 $!,597,801 $15,547,] 17

Receivables as of year end for the City of Lake Charles's individual enterprise funds in the aggregate, including the
a r bl Il . [, 1I bl [, II

dfhfllI. bJt 11 t. n ergovernmen a recelva es conslste o t e oowmg:

Governmental type activity:

Calcasieu Parish Police Jury $ 86,530

Terrabone Parish Policv Jurv 25,991

U.S. Department of Justice 47,572

Community Development Grant 145,793

LA Department of Treasury 233,468

LA Depmiment of Transportation 300000

LA Commission on Law Enforcement and Admin. of Criminal
Justice Grant 117,680

Environmental Protection Agency 1,072

LA Department of Military Affairs 4,931,123

Housing & Urban Development Disaster Recovery Grants 1061 190

Housing & Urban Development Emergency Grants 87,300

Total Governmental-type activities 7,037,719

Business-tVDe activitv:

Mass Transit Operating Assistance Grant 506,3] 9

LA Department of Military Affairs 369,643

LA DepaJiment of Transportation 62,783

Total Business-type activities 938,7451
-

Total primary govemment $7,976,464
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C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30,2009 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities:

Asset Beginning Increases I Decreases Ending Balance
Balance

",apltaJ. assets, not bemg
deprecIated:

$12,282,124 1

Land $ 511,156 $ 01 $12,793,280

Construction in progress 61 435896 17388259 (7066,756) I 71 757399
Total capital assets, not

73,718020 17899415 (7,066756) 84550679being depreciated
Capital. assets being

,

deorecl.ated:

Buildings 20,1113)6 36085 ( 2950) 20 144451

1mprovements 23485114 1 589090 0
1 25074204

Machinery & Equipment 26,321,987 3,122,571 (827,634) 28,616,924
Infrastructure 216,814,439 9,996,847 0 226,811,286

Total capital assets being
depreciated 286,732,856 14,744,593 (830,584) 300,646,865

Less accumulated
depreciation for:

Buildings (1 1,262,516) ( 687,898) 2,361 (11,948,053)

Improvements ( 16,934,477) ( 641,634) 0 (J7,576,111)

Machinery & Equipment (17, [54,696) (2,523,575) 782,363 (18,895,308)

Infrastructure (77,166,040) (4,95 J,303) 0 (82,117,343)

Total accumulated
depreciation (122,517,129) (8,804,410) 784,724 (130,536,815)

Total q.pital assets, being
depreciated, net 164,215,727 5,940,183 ( 45,860) 170,110,050

Governmental activities
capital assets, net $237,933,747 $23,839,598 $(7,112,616) $254,660,729

The assets of the Internal Service Funds are included in the table for assets related to governmenta1­
type activities. Total assets are $36,225 with accumulated depreciation of $21 ,504. Remaining value
of assets at September 30, 2009 equaled $14,721 and this total is inCluded in net asset statement for the
Governmental-type activities.
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B .usmess-type ac IVI les:

Beginning Increases Decreases Ending Balance
Balance

\-,aplta\ assets, not bemg
IdeprecIated:

Land $ 1,297,682 $ 806,824 $ 0 $ 2,104,506

Construction in progress 13062124 2572 171 (4,003,980) 11630,315

Total capital assets, not
14359806 3 378995 ( 4 003980) ]3734821being depreCiated

Capita] assets being
Idepreciated:

I
II I
Buildinos 19804,330 54,460 (]79256) 19,679534

1m PTov_ements 71 052010 4600861 (2,308) 75650563

Machinery & Equipment 7,325,051 265,221 (359,842) 7,230,430

Total capital assets being
depreciated 98,181,391 4,920,542 (54] ,406) ]02,560,527

Less accumulated
depreciation for:

Buildings ( 17,308,618) (520,817) 114,037 (17,715,398)

Improvements (24,545,305) (1,837,784) 2,308 (26,380,781)

Machinery & Equipment (4,446,266) (593,395) 342,065 (4,697,596)

Total accumulated
depreciation (46,300,189) (2,95 1,996) 458,410 (48,793,775)

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 51,881,202 1,968,546 (82,996) 53,766,752

Govemmental activities
capital assets, net $66,241,008 $ 5,347,541 $(4,086,976) $67,501,573

Depreciation ex~ense was charged to functions / programs of the primary government asfollows:
Governmental activities:

General government $ 18,205
Public safety

-
1,439,207

Public works 6,2:30,184
Planning and developInent 21,784
General services 246,098

I
Community services 846,705
Capital assets heJ'd by the government's internal. service funds are charges

to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 2,227
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $8,804,410

Business-type activities:
I Civic Center $1)11,245

Golf Course 205,156
Transit 162,526
Water 1,373,069

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $2,95 !,996
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D. Discretely presented component units

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows for City Court:

Balance Balance
1/0112008 Additions Deletions 12131/2008

Governmental activities:
Equipment $336,952 $32,695 $ 0 $369,647

Furniture and fixtures 15,073 0 0: 15,073

Totals at historical cost 352,025 32,695 0 384,720

Less accumulated depreciation:
Equipment (308,891) (2] ,507) 0 (330,398)
Furniture and fixtures (12,442) (385) 0 (12,827)

Total accumulated depreciation (321,333) (21,892) 0 (343,225)

Governmental activities capital
assets, net $ 30,692 $10,803 $0 $ 41,495

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows for City Marshal:

Balance Balance
I/O 1/2008 Additions Deletions 12/3112008

Governmental activities:
Equipment $286,225 $109,790 $(6,459) $389,556
Furniture and fixtures 8,476 0 0 8,476

Totals at historical cost 294,701 109,790 (6,459) 398,032

Less accumulated depreciation:
Equipment ( 149,474) (53,399) 3,768 (199, 105)
Furniture and fixtures ( 7,743) (215) 0 (7,958)

Total accwnulated depreciation (157,2]7) ( 53,614) 3,768 (207,063)
Governmental activities capital

assets, net $137,484 $ 56,176 _. $(2,691) $ 190,969

E. Construction commitments

The City had total commitments of$13,3]3,963 with contractors for unfinished construction projects as of
September 30, 2009, categorized as foJlows:

Proilect type Expended to Date Remaining Commitment
Streets and storm drainage $ 1,678,615 $ 5,960,253
Sanitary sewer rehabilitation 2,649,012 1,987,624
Waste water treatment and transport facilities 1,310,261 462,901
Water system and plant Improvements 517,9]4 1,5] 1,047

I
Downtown Area !mpr()vements 2,658,442 3,]77,912
Mallard Cove Renovations 1,627,199 84,200
Recreation Facilities

..

0 4,200
Other Governmental Facilities 148,431 ]26,426

Total $10,589,874 $13,313,963

All remaining commitments are financed from City revenues previously received.
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F. Interfund receivables, payabIes and transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2009 is as follows:

Due to / from other funds'

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Wastewater Fund $ 5,939

Non-major Governmental Funds 321,516
Civic Center Fund 305,669
Water Fund 182,769
Community Development Fund 38
Disaster Recovery-Fund 1,765
Transit Fund 125,287

..

Employee insurance Fund 211
Community Development Fund General Fund 9,979
Debt SerVice Fund General Fund 24,769
Capital Project Fund General Fund 700,000
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 308,094

Community Development Fund 200
Golf Course General Fund 185,016
Public Transit Fund General Fund 200,000
Risk Management Internal Service Fund General Fund 749,921

Total $3,121,173
-

The outstandmg balances between funds result mamly from the tIme lag between the dates that transactIons
are recorded in the accounting system and the payments between funds are made.

fntertund transfers'

General Riverboat Wastewater Capital Non-major
Transfer out: Fund FlUId Fund Proiect Fund Governmental
Transfer in:

Community
Development $68,751 $ ° $ 0 $ 0 $0
Disaster
Recovery ° 0 0 0, 0

Debt Service 301,007 2,538,973 2,365,000 852,165 0

Capital Projects 3,730,000 5,148,000 900,000 ° 0

I

Non-major
Governmental 1,132,849 179,500 ° 0 °Civic Center 729,169 500,000 0 280,771 °Golf Course 357;539 100,000 ° ° °Transit 803,151 ° ° ° °Water 1,000,000 700,000 ° 1,083,761 1,000,000

Internal Service 2,000,000 ° ° ° °Total $10,122,466 $9,166,473 $3,265,000 $2,216,697 $1,000,000

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debt service fund as
debt service principal and interest payments become due. Unrestricted general fund revenues are transferred
to finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant
programs and proprietary fund operations. Amounts recorded in the Capital Project Fund to the Civic Center
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and Water Fund is a transfer of capital assets that were paid for with bond proceeds and then transferred to the
Proprietary Funds where they are recorded as capital contributions from the governmental funds.

G. Long-Term Debt

Bonds payable as of September 30, 2009 are comprised of the following individual issues and are entirely
related to governmental activities:

$3,600,000 Series 1998A Tax-exempt Pension Refunding Bonds due in alIDual
amounts of $370,000 in 2010 and $1,030,000 to $1,125,000 from 2011 through
2013; interest rates at 4.55% to 4.70%
$9,055,000 Series 1998B Taxable Pension Refunding Bonds due in annual
amounts 0[$540,000 to $910,000 through 2010 and $805,000 in 2014; interest
rates of7.77% to 6.55%
$25,000,000 Variable rate demand bonds - LCDA for construction of sewer
treatment facility due iii amounts of $715,000 to $1,560,000 through 2022 and
$4,125,000 in 2023; On 4/1/08 interest rate was locked at 4.45% foy two years.
$34,480,000 2007 Fixed rate Revenue Bonds - LCDA for City of Lake Charles
Public Improvement Projects (roads, utilities, downtown/lakefront development,
economic development and parks) due in annual amounts of $1, II 0,000 to
$2,555,000 through 2027: interest rates of 4% to 5%.

lotal bonds payable

$ 3,600,000

1,405,000

20,100,000

32,195,000
$57.3OJLOJ2Q

The variable rate demand bonds and the 2007 fixed rate Revenue Bonds are subject to arbitrage rules. The
arbitrage calculation was recently done on the variable rate demand bonds and a liability did not exist. Future
calculations will be done as required.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the bonds are as foUows:

Year ending Governmental Activities

September 30: Principal Interest Total
2010 3,140,000 2,612,692 5,752,692
2011 3,290,000 2,465,505 5,755,505
2012 3,430,000 2,323,292 5,753,292
2013 3,570,000 2,174,470 5,744,470
2014 3,350,000 2,018,980 5,368,980
2015 2,655,000 1,859,435 4,514,435
2016 2,765,000 1,747,992 4,512,992
2017 2,875,000 1,631,925 4,506,925
2018 3,010,000 1,495,132 4,505,132
2019 3,150,000 1,351,892 4,501,892
2020 3,300,000 1,201,955 4,501,955
2021 3,435,000 1,063,497 4,498,497
2022 3,575,000 919,370 4,494,370
2023 6,240,000 749,200 6,989,200
2024 2,205,000 475,750 2,680,750
2025 2,320,000 365,500 2,685,500
2026 2,43~,000 249,500 2,684,500
2027 2,555,000 127,750 2,682,750

Total $ 57,300,000 $ 24,833,837 $ 82,133,837
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Changes in long-term liabilities:

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2009 was as follows:

-

Balance ! Balance Due within one

I 10/0112008 Additions Reductions 9/30/2009 year

Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:

Variable rate demand bonds- LCDA $21,010,OQO $ 0 $(910,000) $20,100,000 $ 945,000

Pension refunding bonds payable
I

5,005,0005,915,000 0 (910,000) 970,000

Revenue Bonds LC Public Imp 33,370,000 0 (1,175,000) 32,195,000' 1,225,000

Deferred amount ofrevenue bonds 1,029,081 0 (55,129) 973,952 55,129
, Total bonds payable

I 61,324,081 0 (3,050,129) I $58,273,952 $3,195,129

I
!

Compensated absences 2,572,824 525,609 (220,753) 2,877,680 200,000

Other post employment benefits 0 366,782 ° 366,782 0

Police Benefit Guarantee 189,125 0 ( 47,365) 141,760 47,365,

Sales tax increment financing
agreement 2,726 0 (2,726) 0 0

Cooperative endeavor-Sales Tax Dist 3 4,J 14,492 0 (350,000) 3,764,492 350,000

Sears Building Installment loan 700,000 ° (700,000) ° 0

Long-term liabilities $68,903,248 $892,391 $(4,370,973 ) $65,424,666 $3,792,494

Business-type activities:

Compensated absences 595,292 71,599 (31,635) 635,256 5,000
-------,--

Other post employment benefits 0 57,334 0 57,334 0

Long-term liabilities $595,292 $128,933 $ (31,635) $692,590 $ 5,000

5. Other Information

A. Risk Management
As of July 1, 1986 the City became self-insured with regard to workmen's compensation, auto liability,
general liability, and a portion of poJiceprofessional liability risk. The Risk Management Fund was
established as an internal service fund at that date to account for all claims, expenses and administrative
costs related to these self-insured and retamed risks. The fund uses a third party administrator to service and
estimate claim losses, and uses both in-house legal staff and outside counsel for defense of self-insured
claims. Excess risk or stop-loss coverages are used to limit retained risk where feasible, and the cost of such
coverages is also paid through the Risk Management Fund.

As an internal service activity, the Risk Management Fund is a proprietary fund in which both CUiTent and
long-term liabilities for claims and losses are recognized and reported when the liability is incurred.
Financial resources are provided to the fund primarily through intemal service charges that are distributed
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among other departments and funds in proportion to estimated risk and prior loss experience. A portion of
the fund's accumulated resources is designated for catastrophic losses as provided by authorizing ordinance.
Any remaining fund equity is reserved for subsequent workmen's compensation and liability claims on an
aggregate basis.

A lawsuit over a supplemental pay issue was recently settled between the City of Lake Charles and the Lake
Charles firefighters for approximately $3,000,000. The first installment of $1,250,000 was paid in fiscal
year 2009 and a corresponding amount was transferred into the Risk Management Fund from general fund
reserves. The total liability of this settlement, which will be paid out over the next three fiscal years, was
accrued in this fund in fiscal year 2009. Transfers from the General Fund will be made in each of the
subsequent three fiscal years, which will result in a positive net asset at the end oftbis period.

The Risk Management Fund also accounts for payment of hazard insurance premiums and third party claims
administration services under a comprehensive risk limitation and insurance program. Under this program,
the City's retained risk for all auto liability and general liability is generaIly limited to a maximum of
$500,000 per claim or loss. The City's self insured retentions for workmen's compensation is $475,000 for
fire and police department employees and $350,000 for all others.

Total deficit net assets at September 30, 2009 were ($1,004,149). Specific ordinance authorization is required
for payment of any claim in excess of $100,000, or for any reduction or use of the amount designated for
catastrophic loses. However, all estimable claims are accrued as cun'ent or long-term liabilities when
incurred, without regard to the level of authorization required for payment.

The City established a self-insurance program for employee health benefits as of January 1, 1993 and
accounts for this program through a separate internal service fund. Total net assets of that fund at September
30,2009 were $2,350,824. The amount of risk retained by the fund during 2009 was limited to $125,000 per
claimant through use of purchased stop-loss coverage.

-D IIfl' r bTf d' h. th b IChanges III e a ances 0 calms la I lIes urIng t e pas year are as a ows:

Employee
Risk Management Insurance Totals

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year 2008: $5,28J ,273 $1,350,000 $6,631,273

Incurred and adjusted claims 3,018,656 5,08J,013 8,099,669

Claim payment (2,991,916) (5,Ot6,013) (8,007,929)

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year 2009: 5,308,013 1,415,000 6,723,013

Incurred and adjusted claims 8,500,367 5,840,373 14,340,740

Claim payments (6,258,649) (5,705,373) (I 1,964,022)

Total unpaid claims September 30, 2009:

Current claims due within one year 5,230,161 1,550,000 6,780,161

Long-term claims due one year or more 2,319,570 0 2,319,570

Total unpaid claims September 30, 2009 $7,549,73 I $1,550,000 $9,099,731

B. Property Tax

The City levies taxes on real and business personal property located within its boundaries. Property taxes
are levied by the City on propelty values assessed by the Calcasieu Parish Tax Assessor and approved by
the State of Louisiana Tax CommiSSion. The distribution of the City's levy (tax rate per $1,000 assessed
value) to its funds was as follows for 2009 and 2008:
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Fiscal year Fiscal year

Tax
I

2009 2008

General Alimony 6.07 6.07

Special recreation 1.70 1.87

Employee salary 5.27 5.61

Special street improvement 2.31 2.54

Totals 15.35 16.09

C. Contingencies and Commitments

The City has outstanding a number of contracts, the breach of any of which could result in a liability to the
City. The amount of the liability to the City at September 30,2009, if any, is not estimable.

D. Joint Service Agreements

The City of Lake Charles and the Cakasieu Parish Police Jury entered into a joint service agreement, with an
effective date of January 1, 2007, regarding operational responsibility for a consolidated animal services and
shelter program. The term of the agreement would be for the calendar year 2007 through 2009, with an
optional renewal period of three years. The City agreed to fund one-half of the operating budget after the
reduction for self-generated revenue and other specified grant revellue. The fifty percent amount is based on
the average service call breakdown between the City and the Parish. The 2009 payment was $433,447.

The City of Lake Charles and the Calcasieu Parish Police Jury are statutorily required to fund the operations
of the Ward Three Court and Marshal's Office. The Parish paid $229,224 in2009 under this agreement.

On July 20, 2004, the City and the Cakasieu Parish Police Jury entered into a joint services agreement
regarding the management of Fire Protection District 2 of Ward 3. In that agreement, the Parish dissolved the
existing board of directors and assumed that responsibility. The City of Lake Charles assumed the day to day
management of those operations, which would be inclusive of any budgetary decision making requirements.
The Parish would continue tb colJect the property tax revenue on behalf of the District while paying the City
for their management services. The ownership of the District's assets would not be transfen-ed under this
joint services agreement and any costs associated with major improvements or capital expenditures would
remain the responsibility of the District. The fee for the management services provided is the ful I amount of
the property tax collections and the state revenue sharing collections paid to the District. In 2009, the Parish
remitted $ 1,168,54] fO the City. The activity of this District is presented as a blended component wlit of the
Parish since the Police Jury's and the District's governing board are the same.

E. Gaming Activity and Agreements

In 2007, the City of Lake Charles and the Ca1casieu Parish Police Jury entered into a cooperative endeavor
agreement thereby creating the Calcasieu Parish Gaming Revenue District which will be responsible fOr
collecting fees and assessments related to gaming activity conducted within the boundaries of the Parish and
the City of Lake Charles and then distributing those collections to participating entities. The entities eligible
for participation in this distribution are cun-ently the Parish, the City of Lake Charles, the City of SUlphur, the
City of Dequincy, the Town of Vinton and the Town of Iowa. Specifically excluded from the definition of
gaming revenues to be collected by the new district is the annual cash payment received by the Parish from
the Isle of Capri as well as two payments received by the City of Lake Charles in regard to the closing of
Players' riverboat and the opening of Sugarcane Bay Resort. The City received $9,099,020 during fiscal year
2009 as a result of this agreement.

65



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F. Other Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB)

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, "Accoill1ting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions". This statement addresses the fact that certain postemployment benefits other
than pensions, which for the City consist of healthcare benefits only, are related to employee services and
salaries received presently but that will bene-fit the employee in the future, upon retirement and whose costs
will be borne by the City in the future. This statement attempts to quantify the future "retirement" costs that
have been earned by the employee during his active years of employment. The City will finance the
PQstemployment benefits on a "pay-as-you-go" basis. Accordingly a liability is recognized in the financial
statements for the actuarial determined amount of postemployment benefits that are associated with the
normal costs of benefits attributable to service in the current year as well as an amortization of any ill1funded
actuarial accrued liability for costs of benefits associated with prior years of employrnent. The notes to the
financial statements contain other required disclosure information such as the estimated costs today of
providing the postemployment benefits to all of you!, current employees once they retire not just the liability
referred to above that is actually recognized in the statements of net aSsets. The city contracted with a third
party consultant to perform the actuaTial valuation required by GASB Statement No. 45.

Plan Description: The City OPEB Plan is a single employer defined benefit plan. Employees are eligible for
retiree health benefits if they are eligible for a pension from their respective retirement system and they are
enrolled in the City of Lake Charles bealth plan at the time of retirement. City employees may retire upon
attaining (J) age 60 with 10 years of service or (2) at any age with 30 years of service. Police ernployees may
retire upon attaining (1) age 55 with 12 years of service or (2) at any age with 20 years of service. Fire
employees may retire upon attaining (I) age 55 with 12 years of service, (2) age 50 with 20 years of service,
or (3) at any age with 25 years of service.

In addition, if an employee becomes disabled under the terms of his retirement system, he shall be eligible for
medical benefits. City employees must have 10 years of service at time of disability. Police and fire
employee.s must have 5 years of service at time of disability.

Upon election, spouses and children are eligible for coverage. In the event of death after satisfying the
criteria fOf retirement, but prior to actual retirement, a surviving spouse and dependants are eligible for
benefits. Participants over 65 are coveted under a retiree-pay-all Medicare Advantage plan.

Tbe City does offer d~ntal and vision benefits to its retirees. However, those benefits are fully insured and
retiree-pay-all, so the City has no liability for those benefits. A life benefit of $10,000 is available at
retirement. The current cost of the life insurance is $5.90 per month and is completely paid by the retirees.
Therefore, there is no liability to the City for life insurance betlefits.

Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of the retirees and the participating employees are established
in the annual operating budget and may be arnended in the subsequent year by the City management. As
stated previously, the required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go fmancing requirements. The
employer contribution to the OPEB plan for 2009 was $218,000. There is no retiree contribution to the
OPEB plan other than the retiree share of insurance premiums paid monthly which for 2009 consisted of $428
per month for retiree only and $925 for retiree and dependent coverage. Retirees over age 65 pay $307 per
month for Medicare Supplernent Part A and B.

Actuarial Metbods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and the plan members. The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit
obligation is the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method for the October 1, 2008 actuarial valuation. Because the
City currently finances OPEB using a pay-as-you-go approach, the discount rate would be the expected return
on the investments in the City's general funds. The actuarial assumptions included a 4 percent investment
rate of return, compounded annually. Life expectancies were based on the RP2000 Healthy with Projection
Scale AA for Males and Females.
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For Municipal Employees, demographic assumptions regarding retirement, turnover and disability ate based
on statistics taken from the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERSLA) pension
valuation. For Police and Fire, demograpbic assumptions are based on statistics taken from the Louisiana
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (LAMPERS) valuation.

The City provided a lag report of paid claims net of reinsurance for January 2008 through April 2009. The
data included medical and pharmacy claims combined for active employees and retirees enroJled in the self­
funded plan. For projections the claims trend rates were based on the trends from the actuaries "Health Cost
Guidelines." The plan assumed a medical inflation rate of 8.5 percent in the first year, 7.9 percent in the
second year, 7. f percent in the third, 6.3 percent in the fourth year, and Ultimately grade down to 4.5 percent
per year after the sixty-eighth year. The actuarial valuation assumeS that (I) 25 percent of employees are
assumed to elect continued coverage at retirement; (2) 25 percent of employees are assumed to have a
covered spouse at retirement; (3) no dependent children are assumed; (4) husbands are assumed to be three
years older tban wives and (5) 100 percent of employees will eject Medicare coverage when they are first
eligible.

In determining the Annual Required Contribution, the Unfunded Actuarial AcciUed Liability (AAL) is
amortized asa level dollar over 30 years.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The City annual OPEB costs was calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC) , an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding, which if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over
the actuarial amortization period. Since 2009 was the illitial year of implementation for GASB No. 45, there
was no net OPES obligation at the beginning of the fiscal year and only one year of trend information is
available. The ARC was calculated as part of the October 1, 2008 actuarial valuation performed by an
outside actuary consultant. The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB costs for
the year and the amount estimated to have been contributed to the plan during the year:

Governmental Blisiness-Type
Detennination ofNet OPEB Obligation Activities Activities Total

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 554,402 $ 87,714 $ 642,116
Interest on prior year Net OPEB Obligation 0 ° 0
Adjustment to ARC 0 0 0
Annual OPEB Cost 554,402 87,714 642,116
City coiltributions made 187,620 30,380 218,000
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 366,782 57,334 424,116

Net OBEB Objigation - beginning ofyeaI: 0 0 0
Net OPEB Obligation - end of year $ 366,782 $ 57,334 $424,116

Trend 1nfol1nation for OPEB Plan:
Fiscal Year

Annual OPEB Cost % of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Net OPEB Obligation
Ended

913012009 $642,116 34% $424,116

G. Other Postemployment Benefits - Police Benefit Guarantee

In connection with a 1983 merger of the former Lake Charles Police Pension and Relief Fund into the state­
administered Muoicipal Police Employees Retirement System (MPERS), the City contractually guaranteed
the continued availability of early retirement benefits to merged police employees with twenty or mOre years
of service, for transitional benefit payments to those electing to temlinate employment prior to attainment of
the then-existing nonnal retirement age for commencement of MPERS pension benefits. As a result of
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subsequent liberalization of MPERS benefits, relatively few of the eligible participants have elected to
receive the temporary City benefit plior to normal retirement under MPERS.

As of September 30, 2009, the City was paying post-employment benefits to two participants and had a
p'otential liability for future benefits to two remaining active employees. Total payments during the year then
ended were $47,365; the maximum liability for subsequent payments was established at $14J,760 that is
recorded as a long-term liability. Payments are funded on a cash basis through a related debt service fund,
which is supported by periodic General Fund transfers. The balance available in the debt service fund as of
September 30, 2009 was $] 56,654, which exceeds the maximum future liability.

H. Retirement Commitments

The City participates in three state-administered cost-sharing mu Itiple-employer retirement systems, which
together cover substantially all of the City's full-time employees: Municipal Employees' Retirement System,
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System and Firefighters' Retirement System of the State of
Louisiana. Although separately administered by their respective boards of trustees, these systems are
established and regulated by acts of the Louisiana Legislature with respect to membership and contribution
requirements, plan benefits, and actuarial determination of funding requirements as provided by the state
constitution. Additional disclosures with respect to the City's participation in these systems are provided
below.

Municipal Employees' Retirement System

This system covers full-time municipal employees who are not eligible to particIpate in other state­
administered defined benefit plans. Membership is generally mandatory for such employees of participating
municipalities. The City of Lake Charles participates in "Plan B" of this system, in which employees are
subject to federal social security coverage. A member of Plan B may retire at any age with 30 years of
creditable service or at age 60 with 10 years of service. Benefits vest after I°years of service, and are
generally equal to two percent of the member's final three-year average salary times the number of years of
creditable service. Active plan members are required to contribute 5 percent of regular earnings and the City
is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate, which has been at 6.75 percent of covered payroll
since the end oftiscal year 2007.

The City of Lake Charles and their employees contributed to Plan B of Municipal Employees Retirement
System a total of$],616,990, $],667,672, and $],779,]64, for the years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and
2007 respectively, which equals the required contribution for each year.

The Municipal Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report, wbich may be
obtained by writing to that system at 9737 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70809.

Mlmicipal Police Employees' Retirement System

This system, which covers full-time police personnel in participating municipalities provides a pension
benefit of three and one-third percent of average final salary for each year of service, with norma! retirement
eligibility ranging from age 55 with 12 years of service to any age with 25 years of service. Active plan
members are required to contribute 7.5 percent of covered earnings and the City is required to contribute an
actuaria]Jy determined rate, which was I] percent of covered payroll at fiscal year end 2009, 9.5 percent at
fiscal year end 2008 and J3.75 percent at fiscal year end 2007.

The City of Lake Charles and their employees contributed a total of$I,2]2,015, $1,342,644, and $1,450,662,
to the Municipal Police Employees Retirement System for fiscal years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and
2006 respectively, which equals the required contributions for each year. The financial report issued by this
system may be obtained from Municipal Police Employees Retirement System, 840 I United Plaza Boulevard
Suite 270, Baton Rouge, LA 70809-7017.
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Firefighters' Retirement System of the State of Louisiana

This system, which covers full-time fire department employees who are not members of other retirement
systems, has the same contribution requirements and major benefits provisions as the Municipal Police
Employees' Retirement System described above. Employees are required to contribute 8 percent of covered
earnings, and the City is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate, which was 14 percent at fiscal
year end. The City was contributing 12.5 percent of covered payroll at fiscal year end 2008 and 13.75 percent
of covered payroll at fiscal year end 2007.

The City of Lake Charles' employee and employer contributions to this plan were $1,426,875, $1,432,375,
and $1,518,347, for the years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 respectively, which equals the
required contributions for each year. The financial report for this system may be obtained from Firefighters
Retirement System, P.O. Box 94095, Capitol Station, Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9095.

I. Federally Assisted Grant Programs

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs, with the principal grantor agencies
being the U.S. Department of Transportation, the Department of Housing and Urban Development and the
U.S. Department of Military Affairs. These programs are subject to compliance audits by the grantors or their
representatives, and the City's compliance with applicable grant requirements for the year ended September
30, 2009 will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Federal and state governmental units represent an important source of supplemental funding used to finance
housing, construction programs, and other activities beneficial to the City. These funds, primarily in the form
of grants, are recorded in the General, Special Revenue, and Enterprise Funds. A grant receivable is recorded
when the City has a right to reimbursement under the related grant. The grants normally specify the purpose
for which the funds may be used and are subject to audit by the granting agency or its representative using
standards established under the Single Audit Act of 1984 and OMS Circular A-133. The compliance audit
report is not included within this report but will be issued as a separate supplementary report.

During fiscal year 2009 the following amounts were recorded in the accompanying financial statements under
various federal and state pass-through entitlements:

Fund Fiscal year 2009

Community Development $ 1,702,771

Disaster Recovery Fund 853 8I9

Grant Fund 1,082,585

Capital Projects Fund 1,826,105

Civic Center Fund 107,350

Golf Course Fund 449,269

Transit Enterprise FWld 2,152,616
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J. Dedication of Proceeds and Flow of Funds - Two and One-Quarter Percent Sales and Use Tax

One Percent Sales and Use Tax:

Proceeds of the one percent sales tax levied by the City of Lake Charles (2009 collections $19,767,417.; 2008
collections $20,048,716; 2007 collections $19,604,922;) are colLected by the General Fund and may be used
for virtually any capital or operating needs of the City of Lake Charles. This tax levy was originally
authorized in 1965, and has been re-authorized for an additional 25 years from March 1, 1990.

Additional Dedicated One Percent Sales Tax:

In November 1986, a sales tax election was held and the City of Lake Charles was authorized to collect an
additional dedicated one percent sales tax levy for a period of five years commencing January I, 1987. This
tax has since been reauthorized for periods of five years extending through 1996, and then for ten years
through 2006. This tax was re-authorized in 2006 for an additional 10 years through 2016. Proceeds of this
additional one percent sales tax levied by the City of Lake Charles (2009 collections $19,767,417; 2008
collections $20,048,779; 2007 collections $19,604,747) were deposited directly to the funds for which they
are dedicated on a percentage basis as follows:

General Fund
Public safety purposes
Public works purposes

Waste Water Special Revenue Fund
Waste water or sanitary sewerage services or facilities

Recreation Special Revenue Fund
Recreation

Capital Project Fund
Certain types of capital improvements

Additional One-Quarter Percent Sales Tax:

20%
28%

16%

8%

28%

The voters approved an additional sales tax levy of one-quarter of one percent in January 1995 for the
purpose of increasing the pay and starting salaries of City employees. This tax levy is authorized for a period
of ten years ITom its effective date of April 1, 1995. This tax has been reauthori~ed for ten years, extending
through 2015. Prior to fiscal year 2003, the sales tax was recorded directly into the funds where the payroll
costs are incuned: General Fund, Waste Water and Recreation Special Revenue Funds, Civic Center, Golf
Course, Transit and Water Enterprise Funds. Beginning in fiscal year 2003 the revenue was recorded
exclusively in the General Fund. Collections for September 30, 2009 totaled $4,932,015; $5,012,194 in fiscal
year 2008 and 2007 collections were $4,90 I,540.
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K. Schedule of Com pensation Paid to Governing Board

Mileage
Salarv Per Diem Reimbursement Total

Mayor:
Randy Roach $90,409 $ 44 $ 0 $90,453

Councilmen:
Luvertha August 10,200 292 0 10,492
Rodney Geyen 10,200 216 114 10,530
Dana Jackson 10,200 265 0 10,465-
MarshaJl Simien 10,200 0 0 lQ,200

Stuart Weatherford 10,200 88
..

378 10,666
John Ieyoub 3,000 0 0 3,000
Mark Eckard

-- -
3,000 ° b 3,000

Michael Huber 7,200 253 219 7,672
David Perry 7,200 253 0 7,453

Total $161,809 $1,411 $7JJ $163,93\

L. Subsequent Events

Various current and former fire and police employees have filed suit against the City seeking additional
supplemental pay. The City has settled with the fire employees and although the police litigation involves
some similar issues and a similar number of potential claimants, there has been neither a determination of
liability nor a firm assessment of the doJJar value of the claims in that lawsuit: Moreover, there are issues in
the police litigation regarding the propriety of class celtification which did not exist in the firefighter
litigation. Therefore a specific amount of liability cannot be reported at this time.

On October 20, 2009, the City of Lake Charles through the Louisiana Local Government Environmental and
Facilities and Community Development Authority (LCDA) issued $17,735,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds to
refund the outstanding balance bfthe Variable Rate Demand Bonds - LCDA that had been issued in 2003 for
the construction of a new sewer treatment facility. As discussed in note 4 G above the remaining principal
balance at September 30, 2009 was $20,100,000. $2.5miJlion that was on deposit in a Bond Reserve Fund
was applied toward the outsU\nding principal balance. The new issue interest rate ranges from 2 to 4 percent
with the final maturity in 2021 .

On March 30, 2010 the City wHI close on a $40,000,000 LCDA Revenue Bond issue fQr City of Lake Charles
Public Improvement Projects Series 20 IO. These funds will be used for Phase 2 of the $90 million bond
proposition tllat was approved by votes in November 2006 for improvements to roads, utilities,
downtown/lakefi'ont development and economic development. The interest rate will range from 2 to 5
percent and the final maturity will be in 2027.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
fUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted
to expenditures for particular purposes.

Grant Fund - Accounts for funds received and expended for various categorical grant
programs, including law enforcement grants and summer food service program.

Recreation Fund - Accounts for the operation and maintenance of recreational programs
and facilities other than the Civic Center and Golf Course, and for the receipt and
subsequent expenditure of dedicated taxes, user fees and other funds received for
recreational services.

Central School Fund - Accounts for receipt and subsequent expenditure of funds for
operation, maintenance and improvements of the Central School Arts and Humanities
Center.

Special Event Fund - Accounts for receipt and subsequent expenditure of funds for
special events and exhibit costs.

Facility Renewal Fund - Accounts for funds transferred from other sources to provide
for long-term accumulation offunds for future maintenance and repair needs.



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2009

124.325 11.247 135.572
1,718 237 1,955

181.979 2.100 184.079
8.094 200 300.000 308.294

$ 277.087 $ 906.811 $ 279,634 $ 1.729 $ 4,257.702 $ 5.722,963

ASSETS
Cash (Note I-G)
Inyeslmcnts (Note I-G)
Receivable

(net of aUO\yance for unco[[ectable)
Accounts (Nole I-I)
Accrued interest
Intergovernmental (Note 7-C)

Due from other funds (Note 7-B)
Tolal assets

Grants
$ 28.852

58.162

Recreation
$ 275156

503.3 I2

Central
School

$ 21-1-.586
53.801

Special
Eyents

$ 1.729

Facility
Renewal

$ 2.910.944
1.046.521

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
[(unds

$ 3.431.267
1.661.796

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ I.] 16 $ 99.885 $ 5.05-1- $ 102 $ $ J06.157
Escrow 4.190 4.190
Due to other flmds .10.638 290.738 140 321.516

Tota) liabi lities 31,754 39-1-.813 5.054 2-1-2 431.863

FUND BALANCES
UnTeserved:

Designated for subscquent year's exp 10-1-.468 66.408 170.X76
Undesignatcd HO.865 511.998 208.172 1.487 -1-257.702 5.120,224

Total fund balances 2-1-5.333 511.998 274.580 1.487 4.257,702 5.291.10()
TOlal liabilitics and fund balances $ 277.087 $ 906.811 $ 279.634 $ 1.729 $ 4.257,702 $ 5.722.963
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditul'cS, and Changes in Fund Balances

NOlllluljor GOYel'nmcntal Funds
For Fiscal Year Ended September 3U, 20U9

Rcyenues:
Taxc$
1ntergo, 'emmenla1

Ch<lfgcs tor services
Miscellilncous

Total revenues

Special Revcnue Funds
Total

Nonmajor
Central Special Facili(-~' Goycrn:mental

Grants Recreation School Events Rcncwai Funds

$ $ 2,3R9,2:\8 $ $ $ $ 2,389,238
),097,906 3,500 1,101,496

100,688 100,688
739 1O,c157 10~:U66 51,116 48,772 218,950

1,098,n5 2,503.483 108.266 51,1 J6 48,772 3,810,372

Expenditures:
Cun-ellt opemting:

Police
Comnllmitv services

Capital projects
'I'otal expendi tllres

lc:xcess (dellcicney) of revenues
over expenditures

Other imancing SOUI'CCS (uscs):
TralJsICrs in
lnms leI'S out

lotu] other linancing sources (uses)

Net change in !'und balances

Fund halanee at beginning or yeur

Fund b<Jlance ul end ol'y<:ur

239.984
lS 19,C)OO

82,300
1,142,184

(43,449)

71,240

71,240

27,791

217.542

$ 245,33:>

3,24:>.243
21,848

(76 J /;(8)

76) ,608

511,908

$ 511,908

7S

239,984
108,537 252,%2 4,424.042
45,334 149,482

/51,871 252,'Hi.2 4,814,108

(45,605) (.20 f ,lS4(') 48)72 ( 1.0Cn,736)

)7'UU() 3(}(J,O()() 1,312,:>48
(1,000,000) (1,000,000)

)79,)00 (700,000) 312,348

(45.6(5) (22,346) «(,51,228) (691,388)

320,185 23,833 4,CJ08,'J30 5,9lS2,488

$ 274,580 $ 1,487 $ 4,257,702 $ 5,2 CJ 1,) 00



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Grant Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revt~nues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2009

Budgeted Amounts 2009 Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budgct

Revenues:
Intergovcnuncnlal:

Shared grants:
Federal $ 750,000 $ 453,250 $ 347,436 $ (105,814)
State 995.008 988,835 735.149 (253,686)
Local 11,000 11,000 15.411 4All

Miscellaneous 3.500 3.500 739 (2.761)
Total revenues 1,759.508 J,456,585 1,098,735 (357,850)

Expcnditures:
Current:

Public sClfety 482J45 J 1.1.145 239.984 73. J () 1
Community seryiccs 1.330.606 1.J 58.683 819.900 3.1~U83

CClplialolitlay 8:U21 83)21 82300 1.021
Total expenditures 1,8%.072 1.555,149 L 142, 184 412.965

Excess of revenues over expenditures (U6.564) (98.564) (43,449) 55.115

Other financin~source(uscs):
Transfers in 126.564 88,564 71.240 (17.324)

Total olher financing sources (uses) J26.564 88,5M 71.240 (17.:124)

Excess (deficiency) of rev and ollter
sources Over exp and other uses (10,000) (10.000) 27.7\>1 37.79l

Fund bal:lnce al beginning of year 2l7.542 217.542 217,542

Fund balance <.1l cud of vGar $ 207.542 $ 207.,542 $ 245.333 $ 37.791
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Recreation Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetalid Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts 2009 Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Taxes $ 2,432,305 $ 2,412,305 $ 2,389,238 $ (23,067)
Intergovernmental 1,000 1,000 3,500 2,500
Charges for services 111,500 111,500 100,688 (10,812)
MisceJlaneous 10,400 10,400 10,057 (343)

Total revenues 2,555,205 2,535,205 2,503,483 (31,722)

Expenditu res:
Personal services 2,089,506 2,061,471 1,922,756 138,715
Contractual and operational 957,697 1,043,798 906,496 137,302
Materials and supplies 519,280 467,699 413,991 53,708
Capital outlay 54,300 27,815 21,848 5,967

Total expenditures 3,620,783 3,600,783 3,265,091 335,692

Excess (deficiency) of rev over exp (1,065,578) (l,065,578) (761,608) 303,970

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,065,578 1,065,578 761,608 (303,970)

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,065,578 1,065,578 761,608 (303,970)

Excess (deficiency) of rev and other
sources over exp and other uses

Fund balance at beginning of year 511,998 511,998 511,998

Fund balance at end of year $ 511,998 $ 511,998 $ 511,998 $
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOmSIANA
Central School Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts 2009 Variance with
Original Final Actual .Final Budget

Revenues:
Miscellaneous $ 77,200 $ 76,000 $ 108,266 $ 32,266

Total revenues 77,200 76,000 108,266 32,266

Expenditures:
Materials and supplies 10,800 10,800 4,978 5,822
Other services and charges 135,118 144,963 103,559 41,404

Capital outlay 46,000 45,334 666
Total expenditures 145,918 201,763 153,871 47,892

Excess of revenue over expenditures (68,718) (125,763) (45,605) 80,158

Fund balance at beginning of year 320,185 320,185 320,185

Fund balance at end of year $ 251,467 $ J94,422 $ 274,580 $ 80,158
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Special Event Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund :aalance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Budgeted Amou.nts 2009 Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Charge for services $ 1,500 $ 1,500 $ 2,643 $ 1,143
Miscellaneous 35,000 35;000 48,473 13,473

Total revenues 36,500 36,500 51,116 14,616

Expenditures:
Materials and suppHes 10,331 7,758 2,573
Other services and charges 274,100 263,769 245,204 18,565

Total expenditures 274, 100 274, I00 252,962 21,138

Excess of revenue over expenditures (237,600) (237,600) (201,846) 35,754

Other financing sources:
Transfers in 237,600 237,600 179,500 (58,]00)

Total other financing sources 237,600 237,600 179,500 (58,]00)

Excess (deficiency) of rev and other
sources over exp and other oses (22,346) (22,346)

Fund balance at beginning of year 23,833 23,833 23,833

Fund balance at end of year $ 23,833 $ 23,833 $ 1,487 $ (22,346)
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Facility Renewal Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance" Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts 2009 Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
Interest on investments $ 115,000 $ 50,000 $ 48,772 $ (1,228)

Total revenues 115,000 50,000 48,772 (1,228)

Expenditures:

Excess of revenues over expenditures 115,000 50,000 48,772 (1,228)

Other financing SOllrces:
Transfer in 300,000 300,000
Transfers out (1,000,000) (1,000,000) (1,000,000)

Total other financing sources (1,000,000) (1,000,000) (700,000) 300,000

Excess (deficiency) of rev and other
sources over exp and other uses (885,000) (950,000) (651,228) 298,772

Fund balance at beginning of year 4,908,930 4,908,930 4,908,930

Fund balance at end of year $ 4,023,930 $ 3,958,930 $ 4,257,702 $ 298,772
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INTERNAL SJERVICEFUNDS
Risk Management Fund - Includes coverage for general liability, auto liability and worker's compensa­
tion. This fund is used to account for the financing ofservices provided by the risk management division to
othetdepartments of the City.

Employee Insurance Fund - Provides a self-insurance program for employee health benefits. This fund
is used to account for the financing of services provided to other departments ofthe City.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2009

Risk Employee Totals
Management Insurance 2009

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash $ 3,537,551 $ 2,875,099 $ 6,412,650
Investments 1,043,746 1,059,.208 2,102,954
Receivab]es:

Accounts 416,708 416,708
Accrued interest 2,061 217 2,278
Due from other funds 749,921 749,921

Prepaid expenses 849,862 849,862
Total CUlTent assets 6,599,849 3,934,524 10,534,373

NoncWTent assets:
Capital assets (at cost):

Machinery & equipment 36,225 36,2'25
Less accumulated depreciation (21,504) (21,504)

Total capital assets (net of accum. depr.) 14,721 14,721
Total assets 6,614,570 3,934,524 10,549,094

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 8,274 33,489 41,763
Due to other finds 2] 1 211
Accrued insurance claims 5,055,161 J ,400,000 6,455,161
Incurred-not reported claims 175,000 ]50,000 . 325,000

Total current liabilities 5,238,435 1,583,700 6,822,135

Long~term liabilities:
Accrued leave benefits 60,714 60,7]4
OPES payable 5,353 5,353
Accrued insurance claims - noncurrent 2,319,570 2,319,570

Totallong-tenn liabilities 2,385,637 2,385,637
Total liabilities 7,624,072 1,583,700 9,207,772

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 14,721 ]4,72}
Unrestricted (l,024,223) 2,350,824 ],326,60]

Total ilet assets $ (] ,009,502) $ 2,350,824 $ ],341,322

82



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Risk Employee Totals
Management Insurance 2009

Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 4,661,103 $ 6,000,062 $ 10,661,165
Intergovernmental revenue 3,930 3,930
Subrogation 40,473 113,429 153,902

Total operating revenues 4,701,576 6,] 17,421 10,8] 8,997

Operating expenses:
Personal services 439,934 33,475 473,409
Materials and supplies 5,236 5,236
General and administration 1,773,649 987,776 2,761,425
Depreciation 2,227 2,227
Claims and losses paid 6,258,649 5,705,373 11,964,022

Total operating expenses 8,479,695 6,726,624 15,206,319

Operating income (loss) (3,778,119) (609,203) (4,387,322)

Nonoperating revenues:
Interest 50,408 4],891 92,299
Loss on retirement of fixed asset (10, I] 2) (10,112)

Total nonoperating revenues 40,296 4 ],8Y1 82,187

Income (loss) before transfers (3,737,823) (567,312) (4,305,135)

Transfer in 2,000,000 2,000,000

Change in net assets (1,737,823) (567,312) (2,305,] 35)

Net assets - beginning of fiscal year 728,32] 2,918,136 3,646,457
Net assets - ending of fiscal year $ (l,009,502) $ 2,350,824 $ 1,341,322



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Internal Service Fund

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers and claimants
Internal activity - payments to other funds

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flow from noncapital financing activities
Operating subsidies

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flow from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used for) investing activities
Net increa,se (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to re~onciI~ operating iIicome to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
(Increase) decrea,se in prepaid items
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payab1es
Increase (Decrease) in accrued insurance claims
Increase (Decrease) in compensated absences payable
Increase (Decrease) in OPES liability
Increase (Decrease) in due to other funds

Total adj ustmentS
Net cash provided by operating activities

Risk Employee Totals
Management Insurance 2009

$ 4,741,038 $ 6,117,421 $ 10,858,459
(428,846) (428,846)

(5,809,481) (6,611,365) (12,420,846)
(250,046) 624 (249,422)

0,747,335) (493,320) (2,240,655)

2,000,000 2,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000

(13,614) (J3,6J4)
(13,614) (13,614)

(526,423) (1,019,202) (1,545,625)
2,815,078 3,559,279 6,374,357

49,7J9 44,056 93,775
2,338,374 2,584,133 4,922,507
2,577,425 2,090,813 4,668,238

960,126 784,286 1,744,412
$ 3,537,551 $ 2,875,099 $ 6,412,650

$(3,778,119) $ (609,203) $ (4,387,322)

2,227 2,227
39,462 39,462

(249,948) 413 (249,535)
(8,66J) (8,66 J)
(5,815) (19,741) (25,556)

2,241,718 135,000 2,376,718
6,546 6,546
5,353

(98) 21.1 113
2,030,784 115,883 2,141,314

$(1,747,335) $ (493,320) $ (2,246,008)

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Change in the fair value of investments resulted in an unrealized gain of $1,433 at year end 2009 and
an unrealized gain of $5, 165 at year end 2008.
Assets retired costs $)9,939 and had accurrmlated depreciation of$9,827. Net loss equaled $10,1 (2.
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CAPIT,AL ASSETS
USED IN THE OPERATION OF

GOVERNMmNTALFUNDS
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedules by Source
September 30, 2009 and 2008

2009

Governmental funds capital assets

2008

Land
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Constructio!] in progress

Total general capital assets

$ 12,793,280
20,144,451
25,074,204
28,580,699

226,811,286
71,757,399

$ 385,161,319

$ 12,282,124
20,111,316
23,485,114
26,279,437

216,814,439
61,435,896

$ 360,408,326

Property acquired prior to October I, 1985, et<c[uding infrastructure

Property acquired after September 30, 1985 frOm.:
Federal grants
State grants
General fund revenues
Capital projects funds
Donations

Total investments in general capital assets

$ 24,346,045 $ 24,346,045

516,988 516,988
370,000 170,000

56,453,506 52,479,863
276,048,674 255,730,324

27,426,106 27,165,] 06

$ 385,161,319 $ 360,408,326

Note: This schedule presents the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the
capital assets valued at $36,225 at 9130/2009 and at $42,550 at 9/30/2008 that are reported in the internal service funds
are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Capital Assets - Governmental Funds

J3y Function and Activity
September 30, 2009

Function and Activity Land Buildings

Improvements
Other Than

Buildings

Machinery
and

Equipment
Construction

Infrastructure in Progress Total

$ $ 70,671 $
46,964
67,968

185,603

34,242

62,180
23,487

39,968 1,425,932
191,427

1,044,359 380,835
1,084)27 2,118,103

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative $
Executive
Judicial

Total general government

STAFF AGENCIES
Finance
Planning and

development
Human Resources
Public works
Information Services
General government

buildings
Total staff agencies

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Fire
Permit Center
Total public safety

$

214,700 928,520

2,622,248 5,856,483
2,836,948 6,785,003

67,715 600,263
126,300 6,569,802

194,015 7,170,065

438,483
527.693

966,176

4,674.028
9.379,561

189,209
14,242,798

$ $ 70.671
46,964
67.968

185,603

34,242

62,180
23,487

2,609,120
191,427

9,903,925
12,824,381

5,780,489
16,603,356

189,209
22,573,054

Streets
Recreation
Community service
Sanitation and waste

Total capital assets
allocated to functions

8,759,360
5,000

997,957
9,762,317

$ 12,793,280

3,350,734
2,549,579

289,070
6,189,383

$20,144,451

11,753,775
45,334

11,224,592
23,023,701

$25,074,204

3,553,845
1,582,356

4,060
6,893,934

J2,034,195

$28,580,699

195,264.777

31,546,509
226,811,286

$ 226,811,286

13,512,034

7,151,807
51,093,558
71,757,399

$71,757,399

212,330,656
25,446,225

9,755,780
102,045,620
349,578,281

$ 385,161,319

Note: This schedule presents the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets valued at $36,225
9130/2009 and at $42,55031 9/30/2008 that are reported in the internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital
assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

General General
Capital Assets Capital Assets

Function and Activity 10/1/2008 Additions Deletions 9/3012009

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative $ 70,671 $ $ $ 70,671
Executive 45,452 45,452
Judicial 135,520 (66,040) 69,480

Total general government 251,643 (66,040) 185,603

STAFF AGENCIES
Finance 34,242 34,242
Planning and Development 80,246 (18,066) 62,180
Human Resow'ces 23,487 23,487
Public Works 2,425,544 203,2]3 (19,637) 2,609,120
InfOlmation Services 188,367 7,706 (4,646) 191,427
General Government 9,890,379 3,666,298 (3,652,752) 9,903,925

Total staff agencies 12,642,265 3,877,217 (3,695,101) 12,824,381

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police 5,597,955 576,703 (394,169) 5,780,489
Fire 15,854,730 961,474 (212,848) 16,603,356
Permit Center 201,359 20,284 (32,434) 189,209

Total public safety 21,654,044 1,558,461 (639,451) 22,573,054

Streets 204,446,989 12,059,227 (4,175,561) 212,330,655
Recreation 23,385,628 2,066,]99 (5,60 I) 25,446,226
Community service 4,871,336 4,884,619 (175) 9,755,780
Sanitation and waste 93,156,421 12,217,235 (3,328,036) 102,045,620

325,860,374 31,227,280 (7,509,373) 349,578,281

Total capital assets
allocated to functions $ 360,408,326 $ 36,662,958 $ (11,909,965) $ 385,161,319

Note: This schedule presents the capital asset balances related to govenunentaJ funds. Accordingly, the
capital assets valued at $36,225 at 9/30/2009 and $42,550 at 9/30/2008 that are reported in the internal service funds
are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, capital assets of intel11al service funds are included as
govenunental activities in the statement of net assets.



STAT][ST][CAL SJECT][ON
This part of the City ofLake Charles' comprehensive annual fInancial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding whatthe information in the fInancial statements and note disclosures says
about the government's overall fInancial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's
fInancial p~rfonnance and well-beinghave changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess government's more signifIcant local
revenue sources.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's
current levels ofoutstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the government's financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the government's financial report relates to the services the government provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Except where noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the City ofLake Charles'
comprehensive annual fInancial reports for the relative year. The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in
2003; schedules presenting government-wide infonnation include information beginning that year.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Net Assets bv Component

Last Five Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

(amoul1ts eXiJressed ill thousands)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2l1l19

Gov~nul1ental activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ ] 52,255 $ 168,278 $ 185,082 $ 160,853 $ 200.193 $ 204,550

Restricted 19,721 12,216 1(L597 48,485 42.220 30,622

Unreslricted 57,247 64) 14 60.816 64,136 48,188 62,216

Towl govemmental adiviries net assds $ 229,223 $ 244,608 $ 250,495 $ 273,47~ $ 2')(l,60] $ 297)88

Business-type uetiviries

invested in cupitu[ usscts, net of related debl $ 5\ ,800 $ 50,60) $ 51,436 $ 59.165 $ 66,24J $ 67,502

IJnrestriete<l 4,061 8,442 ]4, 1:'4 5,716 555 2,3(>3

lotal govenunentul activities net assets $ 56,461 $ 59,047 $ ()5,570 $ 64,881 $ 66.796 $ 6'J,865

Primary (Jovemment

Inv~sled in wpital assets, net or related debt $ 2()4,O55 $ 218.883 $ 236,518 $ 22(),(l18 $ 266,434 $ 272JJ52

Restricted 1'J,72] 12,216 ItU97 48A85 42,220 30,622

Unrestricted 61,'J08 72,556 74,95lJ 69,852 48,743 64,57')

Total governmenlul activities net assels $ 285,6X4 $ 303,6.55 $ 322,()()5 $ 338,355 $ 357,397 $ 3cj7,2.53

* Note GI\SH 34 Cluoj)led in 20()3'



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Change in Net Assets
Last Five Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of acconnting)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 20n9
Expenses

Governmental activities:
General government $ .:1-.018.106 $ 3.812.105 $ .:1-.024.19.:1- $ .:1-.102.3 19 $ .:1-,158.299 $ .:1-A28.106
Public safety 24,747.219 26.9[9.170 29.515.042 28.708.138 28 ...WO.48I 30.691.441
PubJic ',"orks 21.492.315 20,693.262 28.6.:1-2.450 2·1-,4.:1-9.739 26.341.09 J 26.204.810
Planning and development 2.}OO.829 2.30S.019 2.325.223 2.729.542 3.011.3J7 2.+20.483
General selvices 3.287.536 3..:1-28.701 6.975.121 5.901.532 5.201.297 7.8 [9.930

Community services 4.564.296 4.92~U56 1'0.314.122 5.81.:1-.605 5,65iU98 6.101.747
Interest in long-ternl debt 787,407 1,074.675 1,324,532 1.997,]85 2,850,831 2.703,667

Total governmental activities 6 l,197.708 63.164.288 83.121..:1-84 73.703.060 75.621.714 80,370, J8.:1-
Business-type activities

Civic center 2.88.:1-,374 2.987.398 2.813.459 3.J01.741 3.274.154 3.265A8J
GoJfCourse !.l08.015 J. J85J176 I.Jn.S80 I.2<t9A32 1,247.986 1,480.51 J

Trclilsit \.472.038 1.481.491 1.662.242 1.996.952 2.540.820 2.359.228
Water 6,844,008 7.()45.612 7.757.623 8.1+4.570 8,829,630 9.139,256

Totel! business-lypc activities 12.308.435 12.699.577 13.426.204 ]4.542.695 i 5,892.50() 16.244,.476
Tolal primary government $ 73.506. J43 $ 75.863.805 $ 96.547.688 .$ 88.245.755 $ 91.514.304 .$ 96.614,660

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
General government .$ 4,214.680 .$ 4.188.9')8 .$ 4.431. J82 $ 4.874. ]40 $ 4.855.947 .$ 5, 126.02]

Public works 4.968.936 5.516.777 5.618.552 5.61) 1.800 8.066.296 8.2 [5.96')

Other activities 642.863 804,J72 886.296 1.221.518 1.J65.914 YI1.091
Operating grants and contribution 3.8(,6,738 5.JMU49 ] 5.728.()27 1.968.837 5.nO.889 3.801.382
Capital grants and contributions 655.627 802.681 5.076.055 4.472.0S9 2.917.678 4.913.193

Total governmental activity

program revenues ]4.348.844 16,480.977 31, 740.l12 20.228.444 22.926.724 22,968.558
Busi ness-type act ivi ties:

Charges for services:

Civic center 911.255 845.555 533.072 932.746 915.970 1.047.163
Golf Course 1.010.2+7 1.038.] 92 1.009.908 ] .046,555 985.883 1.126,764
Transit 66.577 73.227 62.086 80.6[5 83.792 62.810
Water 6.691.436 6.898.120 6.370.1)93 ().286.427 6.936.227 7.586.073

Operating grants and contribution 764.235 798.193 1.287.219 1.272.010 1,157,412 I. J98,730
CapitClj grants and contributions 5.293.304 256.761 1.21.1.667 1.510.505

Total business-type activit
program revenues 9.443.750 9.653.287 14.565.582 9.875.114 lL292.95i 12.532.045
Total primary government program

revenues $ 23.792.59.:1- .$ 26,13-+,26.:1- $ 46,305,694 $ 30.10:U58 .$ 34.219.675 $ 35.500.(,U3

Nel (e:\pcnse)/re\enue
Governmental activities $ (-1-6.848,864) .$ (46.683.3 I 1) $(5 U81.372) .$ (53.4 74.(16) $(52.694.l)'J0) $(57.401.626)
Busi ness-type activit ies (2.86-1-.685) (3.046.290) 1.139.378 (.:1-.667.581) (4.599.639) (3.712.-1-31)
TotaJ primary govellllnenl ncl e:\pcn~ $ (49.713.549) $ (49.729.601) $(50.2-1- 1.994) $ (58. r42.197) $(57,29-1-.629) $(61. J 14.(57)

* Note GASB 34 adopted in 2003. 92



2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
General Revenues and OtbCt' Changes in Net Assets

Govemmcntal activities:
Taxes

Property taxes $ 5.888.574 $ 5.895.575 $ 5.953.207 $ 6.536.673 $ 6.612.603 $ 7.348.24]
Sales taxes 36, UY.5Y6 38.271.946 47,667.615 4-U 10.221 45.584.783 45. ]49.67 J

Franchise taxes 4.856.252 5.0(9)88 6,038.709 5.821.514 6.842.265 5.446.301
Riverboat taxes 6.682.497 7.706. J08 3.024.702 6.961.367 8.399.666 9,099.020

Grants and contributions not rest rictcd
to specific programs 187.044 180.156 205.557 284.017 J95,()] 8 201.846

Interest and investment earnings 1.636.726 1.6~W.895 3.465.720 5.258,465 4.781.799 2.638.358
Miscellnncous 1.865.<.>20 ~L330.()43 2.652,685 2,902,648 3.717.359 859.064
Gain (loss) on sales of capital asset: 85.290 4.700 28.100 102.703 67.296
Transfers (1.315, (1)0) (5, J00.256) (5,767,780) (2.124,636) (6,378.347) (6.554.391)

Total go\'crnmcntal activities 56.005.()O9 62,068.455 63.268,515 70.452,972 (i9.822.442 64.188,110
Busi ncss-type act ivi tics:

Grants and contributions not restricted
[0 specific programs 471).765 200.000 190.000 200.000 200.00n 200.000

fnlercst and inveSlmcn( earnings 122JiO I J47.277 :I()2. l}l)O 589.7(i8 181.262 26.597
MisccJ lancous 28.095 184.062 640,010 I.OG4,948 252.500
Gain (loss) 011 sales or capital 8SS 1.647 (1.577.138) (497.393)

Tr,lllsfers I..) 15.9l)O 5, J00.256 5.767.780 2.124.636 6.378,347 6.554.19.1
Total business type activities 1.948.0<)8 5.631.595 5.383.642 3.979.:152 6,514.716 6,780,988

Total prilllary govcrnment $ 57.954.007 $ (7)00,050 $ 68,652,157 $ 74,432.324 $ 7(>.337.158 $ 70.969,098

Change in Net Assets
Goyernmcntal 8ctivities $ 9.157.045 $ 15.385,144 $ 11,887,l43 $ 16.978.356 $ J7.127.452 $ 6.786.484
Busincss-type aClivities (916.587) 2.585,305 6,523,020 (688.229) 1.915.077 3.068,557
Total primary govcrnment $ 8.240.458 $ 17.9/0.449 $ 18.410.163 $ 16.290.127 $ 19.042.529 $ 9.855.(l41

9)



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Additional Employee's Pay

Fiscal Property One Percent One Percent Quai1:er cent

Year Tax Sales Tax (1965) Sales Tax (1987) Sales Tax (1995)

200n $5.155.335 $13.100,266 $U.IOO.2(j(i $3.268.928

2001 5.373.976 13, 913, 944 13.913.944 3.455,464

2002 5,559,910 14.232.232 14,232.232 3.546.611

200} 5.755.614 14.738.. 034 14.738.034- 3.680.714-

2004 5.888.574 15.935.923 15.935.923 3.962.435

2005 5.895,575 16.905.803 16.905.80:\ 4.226.453

2006 .\953.207 21.069.476 21.069,476 5,267.376

2007 6..53(>.673 19.604.922 19.604.747 -1-.901.540

2008 6.612.603 20.04lU16 20.048.779 5.012.194

lO09 7.348,241 19.767.418 19.767.417 4,932.015

Notes: L'Auberge du lac Casino opened in May 2005.

Harrah's Riverboat closed in September 2005 after sustaining damage from Hilrricanc ~ila.

Beginning fiscal year 2007. the City has entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement willl

the CCllcasieu Parish Policy Jury to pool gaming on a parish-wide basis.

A new ci-lblc television franchise agreement was entered into at the beginning of fiscal year 200g.

2009 propel1v tax revenues reflect the reasSement of property in 2008.
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Riverboat Electdc Gas Cable

Gaming Utilit~ Utility Television

Tax Fi-ancbise FnUlchise Franchise

$6.075,000 $3.096,916 $-lO-L659 $-.J.20,144

6.075,000 3.938.(195 663.156 :J.S9.191

6,1 10,,.1.88 3,2)3,18.J. 398,356 .J.~n,724

6,+29.373 3.689.X30 540.348 499.422

6.682.497 3.8l6.930 506.134 s:n.188

7,706,108 .:1-.037.14.9 S15,9]S 546,12.:1-

:1.024,702 +.854.764 659.837 524,107

6.96U()7 4.521.7l4 () 71. 183 ()28.617

8.399.666 5.215.659 632.849 993.758

9.099.020 3.964.23.:1- 588.931 895.136
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Fund Balances or GovenunentaJ Funds

Last Tell Fiscal Ycar~

(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2000 200t 2002 2003 2004 200S 20()(j 2007 2008 2009
Gencral hllld

Reserved
Unreserved

Total General FUlld

$ 271-'47 $ 25 I"W\ $ 292..:'32 $ 624J~73 $ 267,U09 $ 215,028 $ 8(i4,493 $ 1,999,645 $ 3)R9,392 $ 2.'10,186
l5.97U53 23,0 Hl,254 24,264,067 2··1,030,6 l7 25,481,201 27,722,3 IJ 26,835,936 29,486,833 ZR,82(},688 28,007.800
16,249,000 23)() 1,702 24,556,J9() 2-1--661,490 25,74~r21 () 17,937,:;41 27,700.-129 3L486A78 32, II 0,080 28,237,986

All other govennncntitl l\mds
Re:.;ervcd (),653,R89 2,548,520 7,496,774 7,485,c,82 :U\7(>.713 8,525,n7 6,437,907 14Jl()O,057 23,285,955 19,013,569

Unreserved, reported in:
Special rcvcnuc J.\1I1ds (d57,4()3 10) 13,652 8.618.629 10,66[,898 9,327,261 9.699,426 10,774,273 In,620,548 S,77S,6M 12.922,418

Capital projects lilllus 20,761.670 29.10 I,826 33.771,557 53,762,855 42,344,021 :n,283,507 28,477,469 59,084,997 51,085,939 43, 174,593
TOlal ~ll othcr goycm11l<:nlal li.Imis ."1-',773,022 41,9'63,998 49,886,960 71.910A35 55,547,995 51.50H.nO 45,689,649 83,7(,5,602 8-',150,560 75.110.580

~

To\al all govcmll1cntal funds $50.022,022 $65,225,700 $ 74,443,.)59 $ 96,571.925 $ 8l ,2%,205 $ 79.44(1,061 $73)90,078 $ Il5,252,OSO $115,260,640 $ 10:1,348,566

* The incn.:as<:s in IlLllli balancc in tiscal vcars 200.) and 20117 ilre duc primari1v to unspent bond proceeds li'mll issues during the pepiod Cor capital projects.



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Changes i.n Fund Balanc~, of Guvenunenlal Fund"

Last Ten fiscal Years
(nwdiliedaccrual basis of accoulltillg)

""zooo FY 200! FY 1002 FY 2003 FY 2004 FY lO05 F\lOO6 FY 2007 FY Z008 IiY Z009
Reycnues:

Ta:-;c;s :\; 42,<)2(l,2XO 5; 48.870.255 $ 45.722,277 S 47.714.962 S 50.815,25 t $ 54.J86.267 $ 58.915,721 $ 60.340.385 $ 62,863.828 $ (,3.906,886
Lic~ns0s and penni!s 4,400.485 5.442.091 4.539,687 5.219.813 5.502.4·+ 1 5,589.731 6.760.340 6,7\0.807 7;63\501 6.J04.76()
Int~rgO\'c;m1llcn(al 5,811.970 4.650.805 4.902.427 7.648.860 4.978.600 6.774.038 18,15l.628 5.636.828 9.417.429 8.85l.035
Cluu';(:s l(H- s0rviGL:s 3.472.143 3.604.6M 4.656,723 6.03l.983 6.695.931 7.425.881 7.497.818 8.334'cQ2 10.232.457 10,440.834
I:illes' fltJd f(x{0ilmc;s 382,337 405.332 2M.816 234,003 253.528 257.762 257.462 276..15') 30(>,(-,<)4 322.401
\fisc;dbneolls 4,445.087 6.072.823 3.536,574 4.·H9.90-2 3.283.217 8.280.461 8.508.921 9.886.1:\2 6.600,() 18 4,582.043

Tolal r0wntJc;s 61.432.302 69.045.970 63,622.504 71.269,523 71.528,988 ~514.J40 100.091.890 91.184,553 97,O56.52') 94,208'<)25

EXpCAd itul'es:
ennent opcratmg:

Ch::I1l.:~ral gO\\~n1l11~n{ 1.960,262 1,933.909 1.929.028 2.152.558 2,251.811 2.240.148 2.280.837 2.2lJX.225 2.449.791 2,598,746
Finane~ 1.1 09,145 L144,619 I.O()9.504 UOCi.851 1,"177,726 U52.825 1.383'cm 1.392.804 1.352.358 U89,8()5
IlUl1lall R0suurecs 311.\65 312.725 259.088 274,577 253.7X7 276.304 308.00\ 292.767 288,724 317,809
Fite ('.94.H132 7.132.709 7.400.951 8.7 J4.335 9.659.312 11.535.201 12.577,995 12,579,65J J 2.634.153 13.074.636
I'olic~ <),127.115 8,983.015 9.94.1.674 11.504.525 12.765.994 14.119.891 15'c)26,989 14.37U15 14,0<)4.524 14.1<)6.5,'39
Public \\"(wk.s 13.294.')08 12.940,959 IJ.686,621 14.72L47\ 15.407.57J 15,766.960 23,015.679 18,974,5.12 20.648.106 20.039,183
PlanJli"l1g. and ckwl,'plllcni 2.062,355 2.087.068 1.946.772 2,050,593 2.257.639 2,264.326 2,095.331 2,515.448 2.805.00') 2,J05,258
ConlillUllilY servic-:s 3,285.283 .1.380,106 3.366.639 .1.75(;.893 3.731.237 3.851.337 9.707.729 5.046,085 4.662,889 4.545.957
Gcncral sci'viccs 2..J03.314 2.J45.577 2.728.344 2.630.205 2.698.309 2,880,492 6.254.807 3,901,466 5.554.769 4,254.079

Capital prnjc;c;fs 17.412.043 9.867.954 9.913,457 23.028.578 31.754.246 21.505.295 23,238.997 16.341.943 1'J.l36.D59 28.093,724
L)"b{ SCI'\-'ICC:
Principal rc;lirclllcnl 949.562 921.909 855,861 945,967 1.910.667 2.038.438 2.566. J62 2.500.302 ::l.637,28 1 3,991.176
Bond issuane~ cnsls 42.978 621.817 2.905.960 2.758.796
[n!-:resl and liseal c.llflrg~s 700.878 664.164 629,940 698.206 787.407 1.074.675 1.281.554 U93.744

Tolal c"pellc1itllr"s )9.459.062 51.714.714 )3.7Ynm 71.78'1.759 84,t\55.70() 78.905.1(92 99,nO,092 Rl.:2:l0,50! 90,169,623 97.565,70R
l':"ccss (ctc!icI~ncy) or ,\::V'::lllICS
~ ov"r ~:-;pclldilurcs 1.973.240 17..1.11.256 9.862.625 (515.236) (13,326,71~) 3.608.248 3]1.798 8.954.052 6.886,906 (1.357.683 )...,

Othel' linandng soul'ces (uscs):
Trallsl;::rs in 2lU18,517 28.185,969 12.557.690 10.381.689 l3.181,610 11. 911.644 I2,OI6.568 15.728.775 17.610,91.1 17.216,245
Transl0rs oLlt ('10.834.934) (3fUI3.547) (13.202.657) (12,737.887) (15, UO.GI2) (l7,nO,03}) ( 19.084.348) (18.403.41 I) (24A8'J.2CiO) (25. 77iJ.(36)'
[s-,lmllc,:: of d,;:ht 25.000.000 700.000 34.480,000
I'rc;lllillm on i.ssuanc~ of d~hl 1.102.586
[la\1.1\cnl to rd'ulIckd pel.lsion obl.g
Total oUl~r linallcing sOllrc.::s(us.::s) (2.41 (),4 17) (2, 127.578) (1,;14,%7) 22.643.802 ( 1.949.002) ().45X.393 ) (6.367,780) 32.')()7.950 (6..878347) (8.55439Ij

'-let change ill /lilld bal:lJlc,::s S (443,177) $ 15.203.67k S 9.217.658 S 22.128,566 S (15,275.720) S (L850.145) S (6.055.982) $ 41.862,002 ::; 8.559 $( 1J .912.(74)

lkllt sc;rvlce as a pcrccll(ag~ of'
nOllcapiial ~xpcndilllrc;s 3.93°.., 3.79°'0 .LJ9°" 1.36°'0 5.11 ''.' 5.57°'0 5.16°~ 7.18°'0 9.59"'0 () ..,,7°·0

CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
GovcOlmcmlal Activities Ta;; R'::\'cllll~S hy Source

I,asl Ten Fiscal Year,
(modi lied accrual basis of accoullting)

Additional Employee's Pay Riwl'lJoat Ele('tl'k G,IS Cahle
Fis~al I'ropl'liy One Percent One p.ercent Qua.lier cent Gaming t;tility lItility Television
YeaI' TllX Sales Tax ('65) Sales Tax ('S7) Sales Tax ('95) Tax Franchise Fr:lI\l'hise Franchise
2000 5.155,:135 !J.IOO,266 13.100,26(j 3.268.928 6.075,000 3.096.916- 404,659 420.144
2001 5..17.1.976 13,913.944 13.913,944 3.455.464 G.075.000 3.938.095 663,156 459.191
2002 5,559.910 14.232.232 14,232,2.12 '),546,611 6.1IlH·SR .1,233.184 :198.356 482.724
20en 5. 7S5,1> 14 14.738.0]4 14.738.03+ 3.680.714 6.429,373 3,689.830 540,348 499,422
2004 5.888.574 15.915.923 15.935,923 3.962.435 6,682.497 3.816.930 50(,,134 5:13.188
2005 5,895.575 16.905.8<n 1.6,905.803 4.220.45.1 /.706, lOX 4.037,249 515,915 546.124
200() 5,953,207 2l.f169.47(i 21.069.476 5.267,376 3.024.702 4,854.764 659,&37 524.107
lOrn 6,536.673 19,604.922 19,604.747 4.901.540 6.961.367 4.521.714 67].183 (,28,617

2008 6.6 \2,60J 20,04lU\(j 20.048.77') 5.012.194 lU99.fi61> 5.215.659 632.849 993.758

2009 7,348,241 19.767.418 19.767,417 4.932.015 9.<)99.020 3.964.234 588.931 893,136



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA

Assessed and Estimated Actual V<1lue of Taxnble Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Pel"Sonal, Business

Real Ptoperty and Mobile Industry

Estimated Estimated

Fiscal Year Tax. Assessed Actual Assessed Actual

Ended Year Value Value Value Value

2000 1999 $ 221.014.670 $ 2.210. j 46.700 $ 79.119.510 $ 528,796.733

2001 2000 229.530.010 2,295,300.100 83.296.660 555.311.067

2002 2001 236,891.890 2.168.918.900 84.699.970 564.666..:1-67

2001 2002 243.210.210 2..:1-32,102.300 91.841.990 612.293.267

2004 200] 246.685.030 2..:1-66,850.300 93.673.820 624.492.1.)3

2005 2004 253.965.820 2.519.658.200 %.107.240 640.714.933

2006 2005 261.268.19-1- 2.612.681.940 98.723,970 658.159.800

2007 2006 286.848.080 2.869.480.800 l05.860.810 705.738.733

2008 2007 295.823.700 2.958.2:17.000 IJ.:J..I02.720 7()O. 684.800

lOOt) 200S 352.041. )7l 3.520Al1.710 116.471.700 776.478.000

N01e:

(I) Ratios or assessed valuation to actual value 8re established by state law. Assessment ratios current Iv

applicable to various classes of property are as follows:

10%, - Land and residential improvements

l5(Yo - Commercjnj improvements

15'% - Personal property

2Y% - Public Utilities

(2) All property assessments are m<1de b~ the Cillcasieu Parish Assessor or the LQuisian8 Ta'\ Commission.

Required reassessments of all properties were made in 1996. 2000. 2004 and 2008.

Source: Calcasieu Parish Ta:-; Assessor



Public Utilities Total all Pl"opel1:y Total Assessed

Estimated Estimated Direct Value as a

Assessed Actual As~essed Actual Tax Percentage of

Value Value Value Value Rate Actual Value

$ 18,278,340 $ 73,113,360 $ 318.612.520 $ 2,812.056,793 $16.14 11.33%

18.819,110 75,276,·+40 331,645,780 2.925,887,607 16.41 1].:11%

19,251.490 77.005.960 340.843.350 3,010.591.327 16.43 1132%

18.862.920 75,451.680 353,917.140 3.119,847,247 16.43 1134%

17.45 I. 120 69.804.480 357.809.970 3.[61.140.913 16.41 1132%

17.604.920 70,419.G80 367.677.980 3.250.792.813 16.09 1131%

17.6Y:1.580 70.774.320 377.685,744 3.341.616,060 16.09 11.30%

U:L358.980 73,435.920 411.067.870 3.648.622,453 16.09 11,27'1(,

r8,450,920 73.803.680 428.377.340 3,7n,725,480 16.0<) 11.29%

18.718.980 74.955.920 487,25J,851 4,371.845.630 15.35 11.00%

'J'J



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Propelty Tax Millage Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City (}f Lake Charles CaJcasieu Parish School Board Calcasieu Parish

General and Debt Debt Parish Recreation Airport Parish

Calendar Fiscal Special Revenue Service General Service Police Road Gravity and Com Fire Harbor & Water & Parish

Year Year Funds Funds Total Fund Funds Total Jury Districts Drainage Centers Protection Terminal Sewel' Total

1999 2000 16.14 0.00 16.14 18.93 15.00 33.93 42.99 3.93 5.79 0.00 11.54 9.07 26.33 99.65

2000 2001 16.43 0.00 16.43 19.56 27.00 46.56 45.40 4.06 5.92 0.00 12.77 9.20 20.74 98.09

2001 2002 16.43 0.00 16.43 19.56 25.00 44.56 45.40 4.06 5.92 0.00 12.77 9.20 14.74 92.09

2002 2003 16.43 0.00 16.43 19.56 39.50 59.06 45.40 4.06 5.92 0.00 12.77 9.20 15.74 93.09

2003 2004 16.43 0.00 16.43 19.56 35.00 54.56 52.84 4.06 5.92 0.00 12.77 9.20 15.14 99.93

2004 2005 16.09 0.00 16.09 18.72 36.50 55.22 44.19 3.88 5.77 0.00 12.60 8.80 16.25 91.49

2005 2006 16.09 0.00 16.09 18.72 25.00 43.72 44.99 3.88 5.77 7.85 12.60 8.80 18.39 102.28

2006 2007 16.09 0.00 16.09 18.72 25.50 44.22 47.21 3.88 5.79 7.40 11.54 8.80 20.39 105.0l

2g07 2008 16.09 0.00 16.09 18.72 27.50 46.22 41.5 3.88 5.79 7.00 11.54 8.80 18.14 96.95

2008 2009 15.35 0.00 15.35 18.72 24.00 42.72 39.28 3.67 5.29 7.00 11.08 8.34 18.46 93.12

Source: lnfonnation obtained from Calcacsieu Parish Tax Assessor

Note: Overlapping rates are those of local governmental entities that apply to property owners within the City of Lake Charles. Not all overlapping rates apply to all

property owners.



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Principal Property Taxpayers

Tax Year December 31, 2008 and December 31, 1999

for Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2009 and September 30,2000

2009 2000

Assessed Percentage Assc.ssed Percentage

Valuation of Total Valuation of Total

Taxpayer Type ofBusiness 2008 Rank Valuation 1999 Rank Valuation

PNK (Lake Charles) LLC Hotel and Casino $41,984,870 8.53 % %

Bell South TeleCOUUllU1'J.ications Telephone 8,357,110 2 170 11,385,510 2 3.43

Entergy Gulf States Inc. Electlic utility 7,J58,410 3 1.45 4,1 13,9-40 6 J24

Women's & Children's Hospital Hospital 4,529,050 4 0.92

Wal-Mart Stores Retail 4,465)30 5 09J 4,714,730 4 142

Capital One NA Bank 4,217,510 6 0.86 6,165,830 3 1.86

* Hibcl11ia in 1996

JP Morgan Chase Bank NA Bunk .'1,681,880 7 0.75 2,955,810 7 089

* Bank (}ne in 1998

Cameron State Bank Bank 2,704,990 8 055

Seabulk Towing Services Retail 2,257,500 9 0.46

Hertz I,ake Charles One, LLC Rental 1,704.4 I0 ]() 035

Harrah's l~nlcrlairunenl Inc Riverboat Casino 12,965,060 3.91

;;0 Players in I998

US Un\\·ired Teleconunul1ication 4,545,840 5 1.37

Sin10n. Melvin & Associates Shopping mall 2,607,030 8 0.79

Lowe's Retail 2,299.101 9 069

Whitney l'3ank Bank 1,764A30 10 O.S3

$81,061,260 16.47% $53,517,281 16.14%

2008 Total city \'aluation: $492,029,555

1999 Total city valuation: $331,645,nO

Source: Cnlcusieu Parish Tn:>; Collector 101



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Property Ta'\ Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal

Year Tax Year

20()O 1999

200! 2000

2002 2001

2003 2002

2004 2003

2005 2004

2006 2005

2007 2006

2008 2007

200<) 2008

Less.:

Cancellations

Total Tax and Net Tax

Levy Reductions Levy

$ 5,142.416 $ 46,758 $ 5,095,6.58

5.448,959 331,803 5,117,156

5.600J175 29,978 5.570.097

5,814.877 36,921 5.777,956

5,878.836 7.942 5.870,894

5.932,879 36,]4-4 5,896.735

6.081.102 200,513 5.880.589

6,6J7.407 -+7.920 6.569,487

6.896.377 8.1.620 6.812.757

7,483AM 1-+4.()JO 7.339.416

Source: C<llcasicH Parish Tax Assessor

Note: Properly damage reductions in 2006 relaled 10 Hurricane Rita.
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Less: Percellt of

Outstallding Net TotaJ Pel'cent of Delinquent

Delinquent Taxes Net Taxes Taxes to

Taxes Collected Collected Net Ley)'

$ 78,221 $ 5,OJ 7.-1-37 98.46 % 1.54%

71.316 5,045,840 98.61 1.39

49,886 5.520.211 99.JO 0.90

83.970 5.693.986 98.55 1:-1-5

67JJ52 5.803.842 98.86 LJ4

6] ,889 5.834.840 98.95 1.05

57.]62 :'1.82.1.427 99.03 097

89,299 6.480,188 n.M J.:l6

79.015 6.733.7+2 98.84 116

58.377 7.28\.059 99.20 0.80
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Sales Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Govemrnents

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Lake Charles Calcasieu Parish State of L.ouisiana

Dedicated (% School Board

Calendar Fiscal General General Fund Waste Capital Employee's Law Tourism

Year Year Fund Pu blic Safe.!r..- Public Works Water Recreation Project Pay General Salaries Enforcement General Promotion To.tal

1999 2000 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 0.50% 3.97% 0.03% 8.75%

2000 2001 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 0.50% 3.97% 0.03% 8.75%

2001 2002 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 0.50% 397% 0.03% 8.75%

2002 2003 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 0.50% 3.97% 0.03% 8.75%

2003 2004 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 0.50% 3.97% 0.03% 8.75%

2004 2005 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 0.50% 3.97% 0.03% 8.75%

2005 2006 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 0.50% 3.97% 0.03% 8.75%

2006 2007 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 050% 3.97% 0.03% 8.75%

2007 2008 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 0.75% 3.97% 0.03% 9.00%

2008 2009 1.00% 0.20% 0.28% 0.16% 0.08% 0.28% 0.25% 1.50% 0.50% 0.75% 3.97% 0.03% 9.00%

:p:

Source: Information obtained from Calcacsieu Parish Sales and Use Tax office.



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISlAJ'IA
Principal Sales Ta:'\payers

Tax Year June 30, 2009 and .Tune 30, 2005

tor Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009 and September 30. 2005

2009 2005

Taxpayer

Wal-Mart Retail

LA Dept of Public Suldy

L'Auberge Du Lnc

Lowes

Kroger Stores

Tnrgcl SIOTes

Stine I_umber Company

/\e1IdelTI\' Spons & Outdoors

Market Hasket Food Stores

Best Guy Stores

T:vpe of Business

Retail

Gon:mmcnt

Hotel and Casino

Building supply

( )rot;ery

Rcwil

l3uildin~ supply

l~etail

(imcerv

Rerail

Tax

Paid

$6,348,504

2,019599

LJ I 1,230

\J 15J86

610,197

582Ji 1()

527-354

463,224

Percentage

of Total

Rank Valuation

13.75% %

2 437'1<,

3 241%

4 19R%

.5 192'%

6 17:\%

7 132%

R 1.2(,°;;,

9 1. 14'1'0

10 I(JO%

Tax

Paid

$:5287,OY3

2,541,536

744,603

719,(, 11

412,551

49R,77\J

Rank

3

4

9

10

7

Percentage

of Total

Valuation

13.77%

6.62%

1\J4%

107%

1.03%

1..\0%

Clu'istus St Patrick Hospital Health Care

Home Depot I3uilding supp"

Lake Charles Memorial Hospital I·kulth Care

2009 Tn!:] I s,des taY $ 46,175,905

2005 Total sales (ax: $ 3KYn, 154

Source: Calcasieu Parish Sales ,md Use Tax DcpClrtrm:n[

~btorie,il Jiltn prior III 2005 un,r\aiJahle.

$14,261,077

lOS

30.88%

513.543

497,147

$12,200,116

:5

6 134%,

129%

3l77%



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by T\'pe

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Dt'ferrt'd Amount

Spt'cial Pt'nsiolJ LCDA LCDA Public LCDA Public Total Percentage

Fiscal Asst'ssmt'nt Refunding Sewel' Improwment Improwment Bonded of Pel'sonaI Per

YE:'ar DE:'bt Bonds Bonds Bonds Boods Debt Income Capita

:2000 S 12.000 S J 1.545,000 S S S S 11,557.000 0.71 ~o <- 151"
:2001 Jll,975,OOO 10,975.000 072% 153

20112 10375,000 IO,375JJOO 047°0 145

2003 9.7.'5.000 25.0r)0.Ol)O 34.735.000 1.57°'0 484

2004 9.cJ60.00(J 24285.000 33.345.000 1.51 °'0 465

2005 8.345.000 n.5J 5.000 31.860.00() 1.44° " 444

2006 7.585.000 22.715.000 JO.300,OOO 1.37°" 422

2007 6,775.000 21.880.000 .'4A80.nOn 1.084.210 64219.210 2.71 °.0 W.>5

2008 5.915,000 21.0JO.OOO 33J70.0()0 I.0290R1 61324,081 2.54°0 838

20119 5.005.000 20.100.000 :n,195.000 973 ..952 58.273952 1.83°'" no

Note: Detaib regarding the eitv's outstand.ing debt can be found in the notes 10 the financial statements.

NOlie of this debt is General Obligation Debt.

St:e the Schedule of Demographics and EeollOillie Statistics on page 1llOti)J" personal income and population data.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Computation of Direct and O\erlapping

General Obligation Bonded Debt

As of September 30. 2009

Jul"isdiction

General

Obligation

Bon<led pebt

Outstanding-

Pel'cent,ige

Applicable to

City of

Lake Charles

Amount

Applicable to

Lake Charles

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable perccntages provided by Calcasieu Parish Tw\ Collector.

NOle: Ovcrlapping govcrnments are those thai coincidc. at least in pm1. \Iith the gcographic boundarics of the city.

This schedule estimates the pOliion of the out·standing debt of those overlapping govcrnments (hal is bornc by the residents

and businesses of the City of Lake Charles. This process recognizes that. when considering the government's ability 10 issue

and repay long-tenn debt. Ihe entire debt burden is borne by lhe residents and businesses should be taken into account.

HO\\ever. this docs IiOt imply that every taxpayer is a resident. and therefore responsible for repaying thc debt. of each

overlapping government.

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated llsilig taxable propcI1y v,,)lues. Applicable percentages I,·ere

estimated by determining the portion of the parish's taxable ,Isscsscd valuc that is within the government's boundaries and

dividing it by the parish's total taxable assessed '-alue
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OTY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Year

2000

Debt limit $ 38,163

Total net debt

applicable to limit 0

2001

$ 40,000

(J

2002

$ 42,461

o

2003

$ 43,744

o

2004

$44,362

o

2005

$ 46,601

o

2006

$ 47,601

o

2007

$ 44,185

o

2008

$ 51,710

o

2009

$ 56,732

o

Legal debt margin $ 38,163 $ 40,000 $ 42,461 $ 43,744 $ 44,362 $ 46,601 $ 47,601 $ 44,185 $ 51,710 $ 56,732

Total net debt

applicable to

the limit as a

percentage of

dehtlimit 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% O'Yo 0% 0% 0% 0%

Legal Debt Margin Calcuhltion for Fiscal YC<lr 2009

(amounts expressed m thousands)

Asse, . cd value

Add back: exempt real property

Total assessed value

Debt limit (10% of total assessed value)

lolal outstanding General Obligation Bonds (lfCily of Lake Charles

Lega 1capacity of City of LHke Charles tor General Obligation Bonds

Note

Under state fmance law, the City of Lake Charles' outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 10 percent of total assessed

property \ <llue. By Imv, the general obligation debt subject to the limitJtion maybe offset by amounts set aside lor rep<l\'ing general

obligation bonds. The Citv of Lake Charles had $58,273,952 outstanding bonded debt at September 30, 2009 None of this debt is

General Obligation Debt secured by ad valorem t<lxes, and the amount applicable to the legal debt limitation is therefore zero.

All City of Lake Charles general obligation debt was paid in fiscal year 1997.

jOg

$ 4R7,250

80,078

$567,328

$ 56,732

$ 56,732



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Demographic and Economic St<ttistics

Last Ten Calendar Yems

Personal PCI' Public Prhate Total

Income Capita Ci~' School Ci~' School Ci~' School Unemplo~'ment

Calendar (amts in Personal Median Enrollment Enrollment Enrollment Percentage

Year Population thousands) Income (1) Age (K-12 Grades) (K-12 Grades) (K-12 Grades) Rate

]999 76,537 $ 1,624,498 21,225 32.2 15,590 3,cl42 18,632 5.1 %

2000 71,757 1,523,042 21,225 353 14,335 3.078 17,4 J3 5.3

2001 71,757 2,2U8,250 30,774 35.3 1::;)530 2,907 J6,737 5.4

2002 71,757 2,201U50 30,774 35.3 14,281 2,907 17,188 5.1

2003 7J ,757 2,208,250 30,774 35.3 13,668 2,907 )6,575 47

2004 7U57 2,208,250 30,774 35.3 12,218 2,761 14,979 76

2005 71,757 2,208,250 30,774 353 13,054 2,541 15,595 .u
:W()() 71,757 2,371425 33JJ48 36.4 12,952 2.556 15,508 3. ()

2007 71,757 2371,425 33,048 35.,~ \2,7'>5 2,.407 15 ..142 3.4

200"8 71,757 2.371.425 33,048 14.5 12,7K\ 2,741 15 .. 524 5.9

Noles:

( I) Fstim<lles jell' population, in<:ome age and 1ll1emph)ymcnl provided by

Imperial Calcasicu I~cgional Planning and Development.

(2) School enrollment II1cludcs public and slale approvcd privale schools only

as provided bv lhe CaJ<:asjeu Parish S<:hoo! Homu.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Principal J:mplovers in the MSA

Calendar Year 2009 and 2000

EmploJer

2009 20BO

Percentage Perccnta<re
b

T~'pc of Number of of Number CIf of

Business Emplo~'ee~ Ranl{ Total MSA Employees Rank Total MSA

Calcasieu Pmish School Board

L'i\ulx;rge Du Lac

Turner Industries

FPC< Industries

Cilgo Petroleum

CalcaSleu Parish Police Jury

Ish: olTapri CaS1l1O

Chrisi[us St Fauick's 110spital

Lake Charles Mcmonal Hospital

McNcese State 1Jniversity

l)laver's Casino (closed 20(5)

Northrop Grumman

COIlOCO

Education

Gaming:

Fahncatioll

Bastc Chcmical

Oil Products

Govcrnment

Ciitl1lirlg

f-Iea llh Care

Health Care

Education

Gaming

Acrospace

Oil Products

4,850 5.()%

2.400 2 28%

2,250 3 2.("Y.,

j ,2<J(, 4 l5o/i,

1,275 5 15%

1,173 (, 1.4%

1,171 7 1.4'/,;,

1,085 X l.~'}o

un9 ') 1.2'Yo

X44 !O 10'X,

4,000

2.000

1625

1865

2,000

2,7R2

1,7()()

J,611

I ,2()(J

4

2

7

'J

10

4.4%

2.2%

18%

2.2%

:1 1%

20%

1.8'%

1.3%

J 7,383 19.3% 20,5R3 22.8%

Source: ImperiiJl Calcasieu Regional Planning and DC\'c!opment

MSA: Mctropolitan Stalisticall\rea i11Cludes 1I11 ofCaJcasicu and Cameron Parish. All top ten cmploycr~ are in ClIlcsieu Parish

2()OSl 2000

Total employment: Calcasicu Parisb 86,431 ,)O,25()
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Full-time Equivalent City Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time Equh'alent Employees as of September' 30
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

FunctionslPrograms

General government 4-2 ·w 41 --1-4 45 45 46 46 46 47
finance (includes

Water business office) 38 37 30 30 30 30 30 30 ]0 30
Human Resources 5 6 5 5 5 ,5 5 5 5 5
Public safety

Fire 147 147 147 147 176 190 190 190 190 190
Police lSI J76 176 182 192 194 194 194- 194 192

Public works IGG 166 167 166 lGG 106 167 16G 166 166
Waste water 5,5 58 59 61 60 61 64 64- ()4 64
Transit 16 16 17 19 19 19 19 19 19 19
Water utility 52 50 56 56 57 57 57 57 57 57
Planning and development 25 25 25 24 24 24 25 27 2-1- 24-
Gener(ll services 32 31 .14 32 31 30 29 30 33 33
Community Services 81 80 79 77 76 76 78 78 78 n
Total 840 832 83G 843 881 897 904 906 906 904

Sonree: City budge! reports

Note: Personnel count includes full time and reglilar part-lime positions. Temporary (lnd seasonal employees are not included.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Function
General gm"emment
>I< Legal: request for legal action 239

Printing/cOl11immication
>I< Number of mail pieces metered 67,550

Risk Management

* Accident reponslinvestigations 428 622 523 452 607 595 626 544
>I< Claims 356 501 414 320 307 302 277 178
Finance/includes Water Business

Checks issued 13,861 13,525 13,247 15,126 12,566 14,641 15,235 15,553 15,356 15,543

* Occupational licenses processed 4,415 4,446 4,473 4.415 4,391 4,177 4,Q48 4,169
Purchase orders processed 5,008 4,520 4,882 4)57 1,043 3,000 3,589 4,064 3,738 3,290
Water: number of customers 27-245 27,389 27,399 27,760 28,611 27,605 26,889 28,422 28,147 28,124
Water: Average daily consumption 12.5 91 9.95 9.62 11.04 1287 1135 9.53 1079 933

(millions of gil lions per day)
I-luman Resources
:j: I\.pplications received 989 1,103 1,189 1,108 926 725 711 961

'" New hires 332 284 328 368 374 436 483 462
,;. Employee Health Fair I)articipation 50 NA 295 250 238 268 285
Public safety
>I< Fire: Calls for service 1,939 1.011 1,998 1,999 2,J07 2,826 2,755 2,503 2,571 2.588
:\: fire: Code inspections 4,671 3,194 2,775 3,504

Police: Calls for service 106,115 i 18,650 122,091 126,670 105,858 J J 1,788 108,2)2 96,659 93,111\6 90,995
Public works

Solid Waste

* Tons garbage collecled 29,320 26,324 26,320

* Tons incinerated 2,146 3,3311 2,322

"' Tons trash collected 18,869 10,6X2 9,583

* Streets: WOrk orders 9GO 647 1,289

*' Transit: Bus riders 188,175 178,889 175,875

" Vehicle Maintenance: Work orders 5,815 3530 4,291

* Waste \vater: Work orders 4,584 3,337 9,50R
Plaruling and development

Building: pennils issued 5,002 5,354 5,577 5,075 5,229 5,152 6,384 9,438 6,287 4,162
Communil\' Development

,;: Down Payment Assistance 9 21 22 17

* RehablRcconstruetion 7 15 8 8

* Street Pr~iecls 2 6 6 3
Community SeIYice-s

Recreation and parks

* AUlletic teams 279

* Summer camp altcnclancc 460 470 219

* Ci\ic Center: Events 309 356 377

* Golf Course Rounds of golf 40,019 39,498 34,221 32.969 36,464

Art Ccnter/museLUll

* Art exhibits 13 9

* ConcertslEvents 43 35

Source: Various city departments

* [)rior year statistics m)l available
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Capital Asset Statistics by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Function

Public safety
Fire Stations 7 7 7 7 8 8 8 8 8 8
Police:

Stations 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Patrol Units 82 82 82 85 90 90 90 90 92 92

Public works
Solid WastelRecycling

Collection trucks 16 17 16 16 24 24 22 33 32 30
Streets

Streets (miles) 400 400 483 483 483 483 483 460 460 460

* Streetlights 9229 9285 9285 9285

* Traffic Signals 64 64 66 66
Transit

* Public Buses 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 7 7 7

* Para-tra !lsit buses 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 4
Waste water

Sanitary sewers (miles) 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600 600
Stoni1sewers (miles) 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425

* Maximum daily treatment capacity 13.i 13.1
(millions of gallons per day)

Water utility

* Water mains (miles) 410 450 455 458

* Fire hydrants 2500 2800 2820 2850

* MaximlUn daily capacity 23 22 22 22
(miJJions of gallons per day)

Community Services
Recreation and parks

Park acreage 561 561 453 453 453 256 256 256 256 256
Parks 29 29 34 34 34 34 34 34 34 ]4
Swinuning Pools 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Spray parks I 1 J I 1 I I I 1 3
Tennis courts 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 17 17
Community Centers 13 13 13 13 13 12 12 12 12 12

Civic Center 1 1 1 j J I 1 L I 1
Golf Course I 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Art Center/museum J 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2

Source: Various city depamnents

* Prior year statistics not ~lvailabIc.
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